
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas

City Hall, Briefing Room5:30 PMMonday, November 4, 2019

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing  - City Council Chambers

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

Agenda Review

__________________________________

Public Hearing

6:30 p.m. Council Chambers 

__________________________________

Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 19-9497 Approval of Minutes of the October 7, 2019 P&Z meeting.  

PZ Draft Minutes 10-07-19.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



November 4, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

2 19-9499 P191102 - Final Plat - Brighton Estates (City Council District 4). Brighton Estates 

creating 61 residential lots and 4 open space lots on 19.365 acres.  Tract 1, C.D. 

Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned 

PD-359, addressed as 3600 S Great Southwest Pkwy, and generally located at the 

southwest corner of Forum Drive and Great Southwest Pkwy. The agent is Casey 

Stevenson, P.E., Peloton Land, the applicant is Mark Allen, Allen Land 

Development, and the owner is Dan Luby, ECOM Real Estate Management, Inc.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Exhibit i - PD-359

Attachments:

3 19-9500 P191103 - Final Plat - Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 

4). Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1, creating a single lot on 15.636 acres.  Tract 

4, 5B, and 6C of Jerome C. Lynn Survey, Abstract No. 972, City of Grand Prairie, 

Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A, within the SH 360 Corridor Overlay 

District, addressed as 2500 Webb Lynn Rd, and generally located east of SH 360 

and south of Lynn Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy. The agent is Reece Flanagan, Harris 

Kocher Smith, Josh Basler, AD Spanos, and the owner is Robert Barham, KP Land 

Partners, LP.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

4 19-9501 RP191001 - Replat - Shady Grove Acres, Lots 15A1 & 16R (City Council District 

1).  Shady Grove Acres Addition, lots 15-A1 & 16-R on two single family lots on 

2.1 acres and a portion of one lot out of the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 

1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located north of 

Leyfair Drive and approximately 1,033 feet west of Hardrock Road.  Zoned Single 

Family-1 (SF-1) District within the State Highway-161 (SH-161) Corridor Overlay 

and addressed as 1414 Leyfair Drive. The applicant is Luke Keeton, Keeton 

Surveying Co. and the owner is Charles & Lena Bancroft.

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Attachments:

5 19-9502 RP191102 - Replat - Durable, Inc. Addition, Lot 1A, Block 1 (City Council District 

1). A replat to establish an industrial lot on 7.27 acres, on multiple properties out of 

the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, and generally located northeast of Roy Orr Blvd. and Oakdale Lane, 

specifically addressed at 3001 Roy Orr Blvd.  Zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and 

Planned Development-124 (PD-124) District and including Specific Use 

Permit-1078 (SUP-1078). The property lies within the State Highway-161 (SH-161) 

Corridor Overlay.

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B RP191102

Attachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



November 4, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

6 19-9189 Z190604/CP190604 - Planned Development Request/Concept Plan - Grand Oaks 

Single Family Residences (City Council District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept 

Plan/PD Amendment for 59 lots intended for single-family residential development 

consisting of attached and detached units on the site of the former clubhouse for 

Grand Oaks Country Club.  9.4 acres out of the Aaron Wilson Survey, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-198) and addressed 

as 3502 Country Club Dr.

Tabled  

Items for Individual Consideration

7 19-9503 S191102 - Site Plan - Bush Pioneer Centre (City Council District 2). Site Plan for 

Bush & Pioneer Centre for Retail and Restaurant uses on Lot 5R, Block A. Located 

at 1210 Arkansas, legally described as Lot 5R, Block A, Bush & Pioneer Centre 

Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned PD-351 within the SH 

161 Corridor Overlay. The applicant is Kevin Wier, Spiars Engineering, Inc. and the 

owner is Robert Dorazil, Bush Pioneer Property LP c/o UCD Development.

City Council Action: November 19, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan

Exhibit C - Elevations

Attachments:

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



November 4, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

8 19-9505 S191105 - Site Plan - Sivagiri Ashram of North America (City Council District 1). A 

request for proposed single-story, 5880 sq. ft. place of worship on 3.25 acres 

(Dalworth Medical Center Addition, Block 1, Lot 2) situated in the P.H. Ford 

Survey, Abstract No. 543 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Tarrant County located 

northeast of Dalworth Street and Duncan Perry Rd., more specifically addressed at 

420 Duncan Perry Rd.  The property is zoned Office (O) District and is located 

within the Great Southwest Industrial (GSW) Overlay Corridor.  The agent is 

Matthew Thomas, Thomas Site Development Engineering and the owner is Manoj 

Thankachen.

City Council Action: November 19, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit C - Elevations

Exhibit D Landscape Plan S191105b

Attachments:

9 19-9504 S191104 - Site Plan - Avilla Traditions (City Council District 4).  Avilla Traditions, a 

218-unit development that includes a mixture of detached and attached single-story 

homes for lease on a single 18.92-acre lot. Tracts 5 and 5A of E. Roland Survey, 

Abstract No. 1313, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-391, 

and located on the northwest corner of S. Forum Drive and S. Great Southwest 

Pkwy. The agent is Kevin Wier, Spiars Engineering, Inc., the applicant is Jason Flory, 

NexMetro, and the owner is Daniel Satsky, Ashton Woods - Dallas Division.

City Council Action: November 19, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Attachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



November 4, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Public Hearing

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

10 19-9507 SU191101/S191101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Internet Auto Sales & 

Private Vehicle Maintenance, 3118 E. Main Street (City Council District 5). A 

Specific Use Permit to allow for Used Auto Dealer and Major Auto Repair uses on 

one lot on 0.36 acres. The subject property is zoned Commercial (C) District and is 

located within Central Business District Four (CBD-4).  The property is generally 

located northeast of E. Main Street and NE 32nd Street.  The existing lots are 

platted as Burbank Gardens, Unit 2, Lot 446R. The owner is Klarash Ghorbani.

City Council Action: November 19, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit C - Operational Plan

Attachments:

11 19-9508 SU191102/S191103 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Chokas Transportation 

Services, 2960 Roy Orr Blvd (City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit for 

Heavy Truck Repair consisting of a 9,050 SF single-story building.  All of Lot 3 and 

a portion of Lot 2, Block 1, Clean Machine Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, 2.22 acres zoned LI, Light Industrial district and located within the 

SH 161 Overlay. The agent is Walter Nelson, Walter Nelson and Associates, the 

owner/applicant is Angelo Chokas.

City Council Action: November 19, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description

Exhibit B - Operational Plan

Exhibit C - Site Plan

Exhibit D - Building Elevations

Exhibit E - Landscape Plan

Attachments:

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



November 4, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Adjournment

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on November 1, 2019. 

Chris Hartmann 

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9497 Name: Approval of Minutes of the October 7, 2019 P&Z
meeting

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: Approval of Minutes of the October 7, 2019 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 10-07-19.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
Approval of Minutes of the October 7, 2019 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Secretary Max Coleman, and 
Commissioners Bill Moser, Warren Landrum, Eric Hedin, Cheryl Smith, Clayton Fisher, , 
Eduardo Carranza.  
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  Shawn Connor.  
     
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Steve Norwood, Director of Development Services, David Jones, 
Chief City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Savannah Ware, Senior Planner, Nyliah Acosta, 
Planning, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, and 
Chris Hartmann, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers in the City Hall 
Building at 6:30 p.m. Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, Chairperson Spare led the 
pledge of allegiance to the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1-APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of September 9, 2019.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA: Item #2- P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, 
Lots 1, 2 & 3 (City Council District 1).  Final Plat for Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3, for three 
industrial lots on 276.85 acres, Robert R. Tucker Survey, Abstract No. 1472, Dudley F. Pearson, 
Abstract No. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, 
Abstract No. 846, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located at the 
northeast corner of Interstate Hwy 30 Service Road and MacArthur Boulevard.  Heavy Industrial 
(HI) District and lies within the Interstate 30 (I-30) Overlay Corridor District.  The current 
address is 1000 MacArthur Blvd.  The agent is Jacob Sumpter, Mycoskie, Mcinnis & Associates 
and the owner Pipe Portfolio Owner. 
  
Item #3-P191002 - Amending Plat - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6 (City 
Council District 2).  Amending Plat of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, 
Block A, adding a drainage easement, water easement, and sidewalk easement.  Epic East Towne 
Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 
PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and 
north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3192 S HWY 161, 1040 Mayfield Rd, and 1050 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

2 
 

Mayfield Rd. The applicant is Michael Davis, Bannister Engineering and the owner is Mark 
Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P. 
 
Item #4-P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, Block A (City Council District 1).  
Final Plat of Burney 360 Addition, Lots 1, Block A, for a commercial lot on 5.7 acres, L. Barnes 
Survey, Abstract No. 113 and M.K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract no. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, 
Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 1423, City of Grand Prairie, and 
City of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas, and generally located at the southwest corner of State 
Highway 360 Service Road and Burney Road. Zoned Planned Development-368 (PD-368) 
District and lies within the State Highway 360 (SH-360) Overlay Corridor District.  The current 
address is 1891 N. SH 360.  The applicant is Annalyse Valk and the owner is Shawn Valk, 
Platinum Storage. 
 
Motion was made to approve the minutes of September 9, 2019, and approve public hearing 
consent agenda items P191001, P191002, and P191004.  
 
Motion:  Moser     
Second:  Coleman                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #5- SU090104C - Specific Use Permit - Prince Motor Cars 
Amendment, Major Auto Repair (City Council District 5).  Chief City Planner David Jones 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit 
Amendment for an existing Used Car Sales Lot to add Major Auto Repairs on 0.47 acres at the 
address 3230 E. Main Street.  Lot 702R, Block 1, Hensley Park Unit 1, Dallas County, Texas 
zoned C, Commercial District. The applicant is Tony Shotwell and the owner is Diamond 
Virami. 
 
Mr. Jones stated the Specific Use Permit amendment is being requested in order to expand the 
current allowable use to include major repair of private vehicles, not open to the public, with the 
existing Used Auto Dealer. As per the operational plan, this will be only for vehicles owned by 
Prince Motor Cars and will not be available for public use. Staff inspected the property and 
operations on October 2nd and was accompanied by the Code Enforcement Division. The 
inspections conducted indicated that there is a violation that will need to be addressed before a 
CO is issued. Inspections noted the following violation; Fire lane was not clear. The DRC 
recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission approve this Specific Use Permit with the 
following conditions: 
 

 Auto repair will be strictly for vehicles owned by Prince Motor Cars. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

3 
 

 The right to conduct private major auto repair on-premise is not transferrable and will 
expire if the property is transferred to another owner or operator or if subdivided. 

 No paint and body work on-site. 
 No salvaging of parts on-site. 
 Shall comply with approved Site & Operational Plan. 
 That the fire lane be clear at all times. 
 Any non-permitted uses must cease before a CO is issued. 
 That a courtesy inspection be performed after 6 months to verify compliance. 

 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Tony Shotwell, 309 NE 31st, Grand Prairie, TX stepped forward representing the case and the 
property owner and to answer questions from the commission. Mr. Shotwell said this is a good 
business that would fit in with the surrounding area.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU090104C as presented and recommended by staff. The action and 
vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Moser      
Second:  Smith                                
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #6- S191001 - Site Plan - Epic East Towne Crossing Retail 
(City Council District 2). Senior Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a 
Power Point presentation for a Site Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. 
of retail and restaurants on 14.3 acres.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8, 
Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 
Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and 
addressed as 1010 Mayfield Rd, 1020 Mayfield Rd, 1030 Mayfield Rd, 3162 S HWY 161, and 
3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the 
owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the proposal includes a junior anchor lineup (tenant spaces range from 9,000 sq. ft. 
to 55,215 sq. ft. and retail inline along the east property line and two freestanding retail buildings.  
Retail B (14,096 sq. ft.) and Retail D (16,000 sq. ft.) both include spaces for a Restaurant with a 
Drive-Through. The site will be accessible from Mayfield Rd. and the SH-161 frontage road.  
Internal drives established by cross-access easements and Epic East Towne Crossing’s covenants, 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

4 
 

conditions, and restrictions will provide access and circulation throughout the development.  The 
applicant will need to make off-site improvements with the construction of Epic East Towne 
Crossing Phase 2.  These improvements include an access drive along the east property line, a 
bridge across Kirby Creek, a driveway on Warrior Trail, and a connection to an existing driveway 
on the SH-161 frontage road. The proposal meets or exceeds the density and dimensional 
requirements. The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.  The exterior finish 
materials include stone, brick, texture-coated concrete, stucco, and architectural panels.  The 
proposed building elevations meet the stone/brick accent, articulation, and covered walkways 
requirements and exceed the windows requirement in PD-364.  The building materials and 
design requirements for inline buildings and multi-tenant buildings were established with 
creation of PD-364 in 2017.  Since then, City Council has approved revisions to Appendix F: 
Corridor Overlay District Standards. The applicant has worked with Staff to show how the 
proposed building elevations compare to the revised Appendix F standards.  Appendix F now 
requires that windows account for 30% of the area of street facing facades.  The percentage of 
windows of street-facing facades for the retail inline (Building A), Building B, and Building D.  
These percentages are consistent with Appendix F window requirements for street-facing 
facades. The applicant has also included eight Building Design Menu Items, exceeding the six 
Menu Items required by the new standards. The applicant intends to replat the existing four lots 
into two lots.  The new lot line would run between Anchor and Junior Anchor 2 and create a zero 
ft. setback when a 20 ft. setback is required. The Development Review Committee recommends 
approval. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Mike Clark, Gerald Luecke, and Mark Davis with the Webber Group, 16000, Dallas Parkway, 
Suite 300,  Dallas, TX were present representing the case and to answer questions from the 
commission.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Hedin moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S191001 as presented and recommended by staff. The action and vote 
being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Hedin     
Second:  Moser                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

5 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #7- SU191001 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne 
Crossing, Phase II, Building B (City Council District 2). Senior Planner Savannah Ware 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit for a 
Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne Crossing 
Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, 
within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of 
Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd. The applicant is 
William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East 
Towne Crossing, L.P. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to construct Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2, which 
includes over 150,000 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants.  Building B will include a Restaurant with 
a Drive-Through. Restaurants with a Drive-Through that are located in a Corridor Overlay 
District require a Specific Use Permit.  The purpose of this request is to obtain a Specific Use 
Permit for the Restaurant with a Drive-Through in Building B. The drive-through lane begins on 
the east side of the building and wraps around the north side of the building.  The proposed drive-
through lane includes sufficient stacking spaces, has minimal visibility from Mayfield Road, and 
does not disrupt pedestrian circulation. The Development Review Committee recommends 
approval. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Mike Clark, Gerald Luecke, and Mark Davis with the Webber Group, 16000, Dallas Parkway, 
Suite 300,  Dallas, TX were present representing the case and to answer questions from the 
commission.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Hedin moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU191001 as presented and recommended by staff. The action and 
vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Hedin       
Second: Smith                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #8- SU191002 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne 
Crossing, Phase II, Building D (City Council District 2).  Senior Planner Savannah Ware 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit for a 
Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne Crossing 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

6 
 

Phase 1, Lots 7 and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, 
within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of 
Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3162 S HWY 161 and 3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is 
William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne 
Crossing, L.P. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to construct Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2, which 
includes over 150,000 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants.  Building D will include a Restaurant with 
a Drive-Through. Restaurants with a Drive-Through that are located in a Corridor Overlay 
District require a Specific Use Permit.  The purpose of this request is to obtain a Specific Use 
Permit for the Restaurant with a Drive-Through in Building D. The drive-through lane begins on 
the east side of the building and wraps around the north side of the building.  The proposed drive-
through lane includes sufficient stacking spaces, has minimal visibility from SH-161, and does not 
disrupt pedestrian circulation. The Development Review Committee recommends approval. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Mike Clark, Gerald Luecke, and Mark Davis with the Webber Group, 16000, Dallas Parkway, 
Suite 300,  Dallas, TX were present representing the case and to answer questions from the 
commission.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Hedin moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU191002 as presented and recommended by staff. The action and 
vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Hedin       
Second: Smith                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #9- SU191004/S191004 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 
WoodSpring Suites Hotel (City Council District 2 and 4). Senior Planner Savannah Ware 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit and Site 
Plan for a four-story, 122-room hotel on 2.230 acres.  Tract 2B02 of Charles D. Ball Survey, 
Abstract 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-29, within the IH-20 
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of IH-20, south of Sara Jane Pkwy, and 
west of Bob Smith Pkwy. The agent is Juan J. Vasquez, Vasquez Engineering LLC, the 
applicant: Ian McClure, Four VP GP Houston, Inc., and the owner is Sally Smith Mashburn, Bob 
Smith Management Company, LTD. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

7 
 

Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to construct a 122-room hotel in the IH-20 Corridor.  
Hotels require a Specific Use Permit when located within a Corridor Overlay District, 300 feet of 
residential zoning, or 900 feet of a similar use.  Any development in a Planned Development 
District or Corridor Overlay District requires City Council approval of a Site Plan.  Development 
at this location requires Specific Use Permit/Site Plan approval by City Council because the 
property is zoned PD-29, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, within 300 feet of 
residential zoning and 900 feet of a similar use. The site is directly accessible from Sara Jane 
Pkwy and IH-20.  The Site Plan depicts the 4-story, 122-room hotel, parking, and dumpster 
enclosure. The property is zoned PD-29 with a base zoning district of General Retail.  
Development is subject to the standards in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code. The 
proposal requires two variances from the density and dimensional requirements. The proposed 
Landscape Plan exceeds the landscape and screening requirements.  The exterior finish materials 
include stone and three colors of stucco. Building Design Menu Items include materials mix, 
stone accent, color contrast, articulated public entrance, roof profile variation, and articulation 
elements. Appendix F has two windows requirements.  The first is that windows account for 
30% of the area of street-facing facades.  The second is that windows account for 50% of the 
area of all facades or 50% of the length of all facades.  The applicant is requesting exceptions to 
both of the window requirements. Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from 
four categories: Usable Open and Pedestrian Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, 
Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community.   
 
Ms. Ware stated the maximum allowable height in the General Retail District is 25 ft.  The 
proposed building has a height of 48.5 ft.  Staff does not object to this request. The maximum 
allowable FAR is .35:1.  The proposal has a FAR of .50:1.  Staff does not object to this request. 
Appendix F requires that windows account for 30% of the north and south facades. Windows 
account for 11.7% of the north facade and 11.7% of the south facade. Appendix F requires that 
windows account for 50% of the area of all facades or 50% of the length of all facades.  
Windows account for 11.8% of the area of all facades and 21% of the length of all facades. 
Appendix F requires covered walkways, awnings, or canopies along 30% of the length of all 
facades.  The proposed elevations do not include covered walkways along 30% of the length of 
all facades.   
 
Ms. Ware stated the Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall provide additional windows or spandrel glazing on the north and 
south facades so that windows and spandrel glazing account for at least 15% of each 
facade.  The last hotel approved by City Council included 15% windows on the north and 
south facades. 

2. The applicant shall update the Landscape Plan so that the plant schedule reflects the 
required plantings shown in the summary table and identifies native and pollinator 
friendly plants. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

8 
 

Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Chairperson Spare asked what other types of uses could be permitted on this site.  
 
Ms. Ware stated other uses allowed on this site are retail, restaurants, apartments, and a new car 
dealership.   
 
Ian McClure, 17950 Preston Road, Suite 780, Dallas, TX was present representing the case and 
to answer questions from the commission. He is the owner and developer of this property, this 
would be an excellent location for his hotel their rates are $80 to $100 per night they build to the 
highest standards. 
 
Chairperson Spare said sometimes extended stay hotels bring in certain types of people. Mr. 
McClure said with their rates being $80 to $100 a night these rates would not bring unwanted 
guess to their hotel, the other hotels offer cheaper rates a night therefore they attract unwanted 
guess.  He said there is a need for this type of hotel at this location.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked how many hotels he owns.  Mr. McClure replied he owns 18 hotels 
in Texas, there are a total of 216 and are very well known hotels.   
 
Commissioner Hedin asked if they were a part of the Royalty Rewards or Choice Privilege 
program.  Mr. McClure replied yes, Choice Privilege, you earn points when you stay at their 
hotels.  
 
Commissioner Smith noted there are already hotels in this area and he would be competing 
against them.  Mr. McClure stated this area is still a good location, people tend to stay at the 
same hotels when earing their rewards points.  
 
Commissioner Fisher asked if there would be security onsite. Mr. McClure stated this would be 
one-building, 4-stories, with key access, they would provide cameras and would be staffed 
twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked if he had already purchase the property.  Mr. McClure replied no, 
the property is under contact pending approval of this request.  
 
Commissioner Coleman stated looking at their advertisements online they also offer room rates 
at $44 a night. Mr. McClure said not at their hotels the rates are $80 to $100 a night.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated our Police Chief is not in favor of extended stay hotels, as a 
commissioner he has to ask what is the best use for this property and to him this not the best use 
of this land.  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

9 
 

There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU191004/S191004 as presented. The action and vote being recorded 
as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith      
Second: Hedin                                 
Ayes:  Fisher, Hedin, Moser, Smith  
Nays:  Carranza, Coleman, Spare, Landrum 
Motion Failed: 4-4 
Motion: Carried.  
 
Chairperson Spare noted the following cases are related and would be presented together, 
but voted on separately.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #10- CPA191001- Comprehensive Plan Amendment- The 
Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2). Planner Nyliah Acosta presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future 
Land Use Map from Commercial to High Density Residential on Lot 1, Block 1 out of the Allen 
Jenkins Survey Abstract No. 713. Located at 2422 S Carrier Parkway, Legally described as Lot 
1, Block 1, being 4.418 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 713, City of Grand 
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #11- Z191001/S191005- Zoning Change/Site Plan- The 
Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2). Planner Nyliah Acosta presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a request to change the zoning from GR, General Retail 
to a PD, Planned Development District for Retail, Restaurant, and Apartment uses. Legally 
described as Lot 1 & 2, Block 1, being 5.928 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 
713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Located at 2422 S Carrier Parkway and 902 W 
Pioneer Parkway.  The agent is Jeff Linder, Bannister Engineering, the agent/applicant is Chase 
Debaun, Aerofirma Corporation, and the owner is Isibelle Debaun, David Nicklas Organ Donor 
Awareness Foundation. 
 
Ms. Acosta stated the applicant is requesting to construct a high density multi-family 
development. The request is for a change from Commercial/Retail/Office to High Density 
Residential on the Future Land Use Map. This request is consistent with the current pattern of 
development in the area. The surrounding uses are commercial and multi-family, which would 
be mirrored in the proposed commercial/multi-family development. Staff believes that high-
density residential development would benefit and enhance the overall underutilized parcels. 
The proposal is also in alignment with several goals within the Comprehensive Plan to include: 
promoting and enhancing economic development, and providing a mix of housing options by 
allowing a mix of densities to create housing variety that strengthens the housing market to 
help ensure there is housing for different income levels, ages and lifestyles. The purpose of this 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

10 
 

request is to change the zoning on 5.928 acres from GR, General Retail to PD, Planned 
Development District for Retail, Restaurant, and Apartment uses. The development includes 
one apartment building, and a clubhouse accessible from W Pioneer Pkwy and S Carrier Pkwy. 
Amenities include a clubhouse, pool, and tuck under parking. Along the W Pioneer Pkwy 
frontage, the applicant is proposing retail and restaurant uses. The lot reasonably 
accommodates multi-family and commercial uses, and staff has found no indication of adverse 
impacts on neighboring lands in relation to the zone change, or adverse effects on the public 
health, safety, or welfare. Approving the change to a Planned Development will allow the 
owner to develop the underutilized parcels. In addition, high density residential uses are ideal 
along major arterials, and act as a buffer between less intense residential uses. The most recent 
apartment complexes were constructed in 2004 Oak Timbers and Mountain Creek, however 
both are senior living. The proposed apartments will be the first built in the area within the last 
33 years. The development will aid in closing the gap of housing options being provided. 
 
Ms. Acosta stated the site has frontage along W. Pioneer Pkwy and S. Carrier Pkwy; The Site 
Plan depicts two access points on W. Pioneer Pkwy to access the retail and restaurants fronting 
W. Pioneer Pkwy, and the multi-family development is directly behind the retail/restaurants, also 
accessible from Pioneer Pkwy or Carrier Pkwy. The exterior building materials include five earth 
tone stuccos, one accent stucco, and cultured stone. It should be noted, that the applicant is using 
100% stucco on all facades for the multi-family component of the request, which is the preferred 
material, and is meeting the intention of Appendix W's building design. Because of this, the 
applicant is allowed to increase the number of single bedroom units by 10%. The applicant is 
requesting the following variances: 
 

1. Minimum Living Area for Studio Units 
2. Minimum 45+ Side Interior Setback for Building A 
3. Minimum 30% Garage Parking 
4. Maximum 60 ft. Height for MF-3 
5. Maximum 25 ft. Height for GR 
6. Minimum Parking requirement for MF-3 
7. Minimum Parking Requirement for GR 
8. Pole Sign Relocation  

 
Ms. Acosta stated the Development Review Committee recommends approval of the proposed 
zone change from GR, General Retail to PD, Planned Development District. 
 
Chairperson Spare asked if there are parking requirements for studio apartments, and where are 
the guess parking located. Ms. Acosta stated we do not have parking requirements for studio 
apartments, but could be considered one-bedroom apartments.  Mr. Jones stated there is a 
requirement that they provide guess parking.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

11 
 

Commissioner Carranza asked if a TIA was required.  Ms. Acosta replied no, this location does 
not require a Traffic Impact Analysis.    
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Chase Debaun, 2935 S. Belt Line Road, Grand Prairie, TX was present representing the case and 
to answer questions from the commission.  He said this area has been an eye-sore for quiet 
sometime, because of the odd shaped lot and Hwy 161, no big box would come into this area 
therefore they are proposing a mix use development.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated the proposal looks great, but he is concern with the parking. Mr. 
Debaun said if they do receive a proposal for a restaurant they would need to provide additional 
parking and reconfigure the building, but the multi family has been design to fit the site as best 
as they could.  
 
There being no further discussion on case CPA191002, commissioner Coleman moved to close 
the public hearing and approve case CPA191001 as presented. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Coleman       
Second: Smith                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
There being no further discussion on case Z191001/S191005, commissioner Coleman moved to 
close the public hearing and approve case Z191001/S191005 as presented and recommended by 
staff. The action and vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Coleman       
Second:  Landrum                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

12 
 

Chairperson Spare noted the following cases are related and would be presented together, 
but voted on separately.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #12- CPA191002 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment (City 
Council District 4). Senior Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power 
Point presentation for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from Commercial to Mixed Use for 21.8 acres. Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, 
City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay 
District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 W IH-20. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #13- Z191003/CP191003 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - 
Bardin Road Mixed Use (City Council District 4).  Senior Planner Savannah Ware presented the 
case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Zoning Change and Concept Plan for 
Multi-Family, Retail, Restaurants, and a Theater on 21.80 acres.  Sheffield Village Phase IV, 
Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-20 Corridor 
Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 W IH-20. The 
agent is Brian Moore, applicant is Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, and the owner is 
Jeremy Welman, Harkins Grand Prairie. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the purpose of the request is to amend the Future Land Use Map from Commercial 
to Med-Density Residential on 18.92 acres so that the FLUM is consistent with a development 
proposed at this location.  Mixed-use areas are intended to provide flexibility in order to encourage 
innovative, unique, and sustainable developments.  Areas designated for Mixed Use include a 
mixture of non-residential and residential uses and require a well thought-out, master planned 
approach.  Additionally, these developments should be designed around the pedestrian, with 
walkable connections to shopping and dining as key components. The purpose of the request is to 
create a Planned Development District for multi-family, retail, restaurant, and cinema uses on 
21.80 acres. The Concept Plan depicts the following: 9.698 acres of multi-family use at a density of 
42 dwelling units per acre; 401 multi-family units in five buildings, one of which wraps around 
three sides of a five-level structured parking garage; and 11.936 acres of commercial uses including 
a 40,700 sq. ft. cinema and almost 50,000 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants. The focal point of the 
development is the Grand Lawn, a centrally located open space amenity. The three use components-
multi-family, retail/restaurant, and cinema-are physically and functionally organized around the 
Grand Lawn. Buildings frame the space to create a consistent edge and screen surface parking from 
the open space.  Restaurants with outdoor dining areas face the Grand Lawn.  Wide textured 
crosswalks will make it easy for people living in the apartments to walk to and use the Grand Lawn.  
The cinema includes an outdoor screen for outdoor viewing of movies on the Grand Lawn. The 
entrance to the five-level wrapped parking garage is shown off of Bardin Road.  There is a 
possibility that a vehicle that is denied entry to the garage could cause the queuing of vehicles onto 
Bardin Road.  This potential issue will need to be addressed with the Site Plan.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

13 
 

Ms. Ware stated the applicant submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis to estimate the impact of the 
proposed development on traffic operations.  The TIA includes the findings; The intersection of I-
20 Eastbound Frontage Road and Endicott Drive will continue to operate efficiently and at good 
Levels of Service; The driveways are anticipated to operate at good Levels of Service; Traffic 
operations at Bardin Road and Magna Carta Boulevard are anticipated to reach poor Levels of 
Service during peak hours and cannot be mitigated without the addition of a traffic signal; however, 
the projected traffic volumes are not sufficient to meet traffic signal warrants for the intersection; 
Future improvements to upgrade Bardin Road from a two-lane roadway to a four-lane roadway and 
installation of traffic signals will allow the intersections of Bardin Road at the frontage roads to 
operate at good Levels of Service; and The intersection of Bardin Road at SH-360 Northbound 
Frontage Road currently operates at unacceptable Levels of Service. The addition of projected 
growth and site-related traffic will further degrade operations.  Ms. Ware said the TIA recommends 
installation of traffic signals at the Bardin Road and SH-360 interchange in order to provide 
acceptable traffic operations.  While the proposed development will not cause the degraded 
operations, it will contribute. The Transportation Department recommends that the developer 
participate in the cost of signalizing the intersection of Bardin Road and SH-360.  
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant is proposing General Retail and Multi-Family Three as the base 
zoning districts. Commercial development will be subject to uses and development requirements for  
GR with the following changes: 

 Prohibit the following uses which are currently allowed with a Specific Use Permit: boat 
dealer, motorcycle dealer, laundry, self-serve, mini storage, auto parts sales, new, and 
variety store. 

 Allow a Restaurant with Alcohol Sales Including Entertainment and Brewpub by right. 
 Allow a Brewpub with one of the characteristics described in Article 11 of the UDC with 

approval of a Specific Use Permit. 
 Increase the maximum allowable height to 60 ft. for the cinema. 
 Allow a 120 ft. multi-tenant monument sign. 
 

Multi-Family development will be subject to development standards for MF-3 with the following 
changes: 

 Increase the allowable density to 42 dwelling units per acre. 
 Increase the maximum allowable height to allow building three to be constructed at a height 

of 66 ft. 
 Allow construction without a perimeter fence and gated entry. 
 Provide at least 50% of required parking spaces in a structured parking garage and tuck-

under garages instead of a combination of garages (30%) and carports (20%). 
 
Ms. Ware stated the subject property is currently zoned PD-140 for commercial uses.  The 
applicant is proposing a more restrictive base zoning district and to allow a Restaurant with 
Alcohol Sales Including Entertainment and Brewpub by right.  These uses are consistent with 
developer’s vision for a mixed-use destination. The applicant is also proposing to increase the 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

14 
 

maximum allowable height to 60 ft. to for the cinema. This exceeds the maximum height for GR 
but is less than the 10 stories allowed by PD-140. The developer has requested that the 120 ft. 
sign be considered as a part of the zoning request.  Variances to sign requirements are typically 
processed separately from the zoning request as a Unified Signage Plan. The subject property is 
currently zoned PD-140 and residential uses-Community Unit Development and Condo High-
Rise-are allowed at this location.  The definition of Community Unit Development does specify 
a particular housing type and states that the density should not vary from that of the district in 
which it is located.  Condo High-Rise is defined as multi-family units with a condominium 
regime/association and higher than 75 feet.  PD-140 does not establish a specific density.  Staff’s 
interpretation written in 1994 states that while residential uses are allowed, the location, type and 
density must be approved as part of a Planned Development approval.  Establishing MF-3 as the 
base zoning district for this property will bring the zoning closer to conformance with current 
standards.  The applicant is requesting four variances from MF-3: 1. the proposed density of 42 
dwelling units per acre exceeds the density of 26 dwelling units per acre allowed in MF-3; the 
proposed height for building three is 66 ft.  It exceeds the maximum height of 60 ft. allowed in 
MF-3 but is less than the minimum height for Condo High-Rise allowed in PD-140; a variance to 
this requirement will allow the multi-family to function as an integrated component of a 
walkable, mixed-use development; and the proposal does not include carports. Appendix W 
requires that carports account for 20% of required parking spaces and garages account for 30% 
of required parking spaces.  The Concept Plan depicts a five-level parking garage and tuck-under 
garages that account for more than 50% of the required parking spaces. The proposed 
development is the type and quality of place that Appendix F is intended to produce.  The mix 
and integration of uses and presence and design of usable open space will create a unique 
destination. The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Zoning 
Change/Concept Plan and variances to the sign requirements be requested through a Unified 
Signage Plan. 
 
Commissioner Smith would like to know how big the open space would be.   
 
Hamilton Peck with Hamilton Commercial LLC, 2507 Croft Creek, Grand Prairie, TX was 
present representing the case and to answer questions from the commission.  Mr. Peck presented 
staff with a video of the proposed development, and stated this development would be the first 
for this area.  
 
Commissioner Smith stated she likes the style of the project and would like to see it come to 
Grand Prairie.  Mr. Peck stated the access would be a challenge, but the location is very 
appealing to Alamo.   
 
Commissioner Landrum asked if they are in agreement with participating in the cost of signalizing 
the intersection of Bardin Road and SH-360. Mr. Peck replied yes.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

15 
 

Commissioner Moser asked how would he make sure the traffic does not back up onto Bardin 
Road.  Mr. Peck stated this would be addressed during the site plan process.  
 
Brain Moore, 2808 Fairmont, Dallas, TX stated to answer commission Smith question the open 
space would be about 20,000 sq. ft. 
 
There being no further discussion on case CPA191002, commissioner Smith moved to close the 
public hearing and approve case CPA191002 as presented. The action and vote being recorded as 
follows:   
 
Motion: Smith       
Second: Landrum                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
There being no further discussion on case Z191003/CP191003, commissioner Smith moved to 
close the public hearing and approve case Z191003/CP191003 as presented and recommended 
by staff. The action and vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith      
Second: Landrum                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
Chairperson Spare noted the following cases are related and would be presented together, 
but voted on separately.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #14- CPA191003 – Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 
Riverside Mixed Use (City Council District 1). Chief City Planner David Jones presented the 
case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment from 
Open Space/Drainage to Mixed Use.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club Addition and an 
unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill 
Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, 
Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay District and 
addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas. 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

16 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #15- Z191004/CP191004 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - 
Riverside Hotel and Apartments (City Council District 1).  Chief City Planner David Jones 
presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Zoning Change and Concept 
Plan to rezone approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light Industrial to a Planned 
Development for Hotel, Apartment, and Golf Course uses.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club 
Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, 
the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of 
Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay 
District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas. The owner is Howard 
Porteus. 
 
Mr. Jones stated the purpose of the request is to amend the Future Land Use Map so that the FLUM 
is consistent with a development proposed at this location. The development will include hotel and 
multi-family residential uses along with the balance of the existing golf course. The Open 
Space/Drainage Land Use category primarily consists of floodplains located along the many 
waterways running through Grand Prairie. These areas should be preserved as public and 
neighborhood-oriented open spaces, and incorporate trails and drainage corridors which are left in a 
naturalistic state. Impacts on these areas should be closely considered when intense uses are 
proposed within close proximity. The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in 
the 2010 and 2018 Comprehensive Plans. The designation of Open Space/Drainage for this property 
does not currently match the definition of OS/D in the Comprehensive Plan. While the golf course 
does partially sit within a floodplain, it is not in a natural state. Amending the designation to Mixed 
Use would bring an underdeveloped site at a highway intersection into alignment with its potential, 
as well as alignment with neighboring development consisting of multi-family, office, lodging, 
recreation, and industrial. Furthermore, the proposed development would actually fulfill a key 
characteristic of the OS/D designation, since it would sit in close proximity to existing and proposed 
regional veloweb connections in Arlington and Fort Worth.  
 
Mr. Jones said the purpose of this request is to create a planned development district for hotel, 
conference center, and multi-family use on approximately 23 acres west of SH 360 and north of 
Riverside Pkwy. The zoning change would allow for construction of a 250 key hotel up to 8 stories 
tall along with a conference center approximately 20,000 square feet in size and multi-family at a 
density of 80 dwelling units per acre. The current clubhouse would be rebuilt as part of the 
hotel/conference center while the existing cart barn would be remain. Current access from Riverside 
Pkwy would remain, and additional access points would be constructed to provide access from SH 
360. The applicant is proposing a mixed use zoning to allow for retail commercial development 
including a hotel and conference center, limited retail, restaurants, mixed-use buildings with bottom 
floor residential, wrap-style multi-family with structured parking, and urban townhomes. A use not 
shown in this table is prohibited, even if allowed in the MF-3 or C districts in the UDC. Drive thru 
windows will only be permitted within 500 feet of the 360 frontage road. The applicant is proposing 
a shared parking formula that accounts for time of day to determine parking demand. This approach 
is similar though not directly comparable to the shared parking requirements found in Article 10 of 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

17 
 

the Unified Development Code, though some of the morning and midday factor calculations will 
result in increased required parking than required under the UDC. Applicant requests to waive all 
other requirements of Article 8, Landscaping and Screening Standards except for rooftop, loading, 
and dumpster screening requirements. The proposed PD will require the use of articulation, 
windows, and materials consistent with the requirements of Appendix F.  
 
Mr. Jones stated the proposed density of 80 dwelling units per acre exceeds the density of 26 
dwelling units per acre allowed in MF-3. Staff is comfortable with this density if development is 
accompanied by construction of the 360 Frontage Road to provide additional entry points.  The 
proposed height for multi-family is 15 stories which exceeds the maximum height of 60 ft. 
allowed in MF-3. The proposed height of non-residential is unlimited; Commercial zoning is 
limited to 50 feet in height. This site has no residential adjacency and sits along the SH 360 
corridor close to the American Airlines HQ buildings and other office high-rises.  A variance to 
this requirement will allow the multi-family to function as an integrated component of a 
walkable, mixed-use development. Some shared parking factors may result in a 5% increase in 
required parking over base UDC standards. Staff is comfortable with this variance. Only parking 
lot landscaping and street trees required. Staff is comfortable with waiving screening 
requirements because this is an integrated development that is bounded by the golf course and 
the Trinity river.  Staff is comfortable with this allowance as long as the business associated with 
the drive thru window is a coffee shop or primarily sit-down oriented restaurant, is not a quick-
serve restaurant, and is part of a mixed-use building. The Development Review Committee 
recommends approval with the following conditions: 1. Multiple public open spaces be provided 
that are a minimum 100 feet x 50 feet. 2. Drive-thru windows be restricted to coffee shops and 
“fast casual” restaurants offering a printed menu of foods prepared after ordering and served at a 
table on non-disposable dishware. 
 
Chairperson Spare opened the public hearing, and called for individuals wishing to speak on this 
item. 
 
Jake McGlaun, 2627 Alco Avenue, Dallas, TX was present representing the case and to answer 
questions from the commission.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated this area is within the floodplain and he has seen the roads underwater.  
Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, stated the city has been working with COG, TxDOT, 
City of Arlington, and the developer to make sure the frontage roads are engineered and 
constructed accordingly.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case CPA191003, commissioner Fisher moved to close 
the public hearing and approve case CPA191003 as presented. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Fisher       



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, OCTOBER 7, 2019 
 

18 
 

Second:  Coleman                                
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
There being no further discussion on case Z191004/CP191004, commissioner Landrum moved 
to close the public hearing and approve case Z191004/CP191004 as presented and recommended 
by staff. The action and vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Landrum       
Second: Smith                                 
Ayes:  Carranza, Coleman, Fisher, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
Commissioners or Citizens Comments:   
 
Commissioner Moser said it bothers him when someone stands at the podium and lies to him, 
Woodspring Hotel is advertising, if you book 5 nights or more or for 7 days the rate would be 
$49 a night.  He is very upset that the applicant would lie to them about their nightly rates.  
 
Commission Moser moved to adjourn the meeting of October 7, 2019.  The meeting adjourned at 
8:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9499 Name: P191102 - Final Plat - Brighton Estates

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: P191102 - Final Plat - Brighton Estates (City Council District 4). Brighton Estates creating 61
residential lots and 4 open space lots on 19.365 acres.  Tract 1, C.D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197,
City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-359, addressed as 3600 S Great Southwest
Pkwy, and generally located at the southwest corner of Forum Drive and Great Southwest Pkwy. The
agent is Casey Stevenson, P.E., Peloton Land, the applicant is Mark Allen, Allen Land Development,
and the owner is Dan Luby, ECOM Real Estate Management, Inc.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Exhibit i - PD-359

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P191102 - Final Plat - Brighton Estates (City Council District 4). Brighton Estates creating 61 residential lots
and 4 open space lots on 19.365 acres.  Tract 1, C.D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197, City of Grand Prairie,
Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-359, addressed as 3600 S Great Southwest Pkwy, and generally located at the
southwest corner of Forum Drive and Great Southwest Pkwy. The agent is Casey Stevenson, P.E., Peloton
Land, the applicant is Mark Allen, Allen Land Development, and the owner is Dan Luby, ECOM Real Estate
Management, Inc.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Brighton Estates creating 61 residential lots and four open space lots on 19.365 acres. Tract 1,
C.D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-359, addressed as
3600 S Great Southwest Pkwy, and generally located at the southwest corner of Forum Drive and Great
Southwest Pkwy.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9499, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create 61 residential lots and four open space lots to facilitate the
development of a single family subdivision on 19.365 acres.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and
Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-391 Undeveloped

South General Retail (GR) Floodplain, Floodway, Creek, Restaurant w/ drive-through

West Single Family-Two (SF-2) Single family residential

East PD-83 Single family residential

HISTORY:

· March 21, 2017: City Council approved a Zoning Change/Concept Plan (Case Number
Z170101/CP170101), creating a planned development district for single family residential uses.

· April 2, 2018: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Brighton Estates,
Phase 1A (Case Number P180401).

· August 27, 2019: The Development Review Committee approved an extension to the Preliminary Plat
for Brighton Estates, Phase 1A (Case Number P180401A).

PLAT FEATURES:

The proposed subdivision is accessible from Great Southwest Parkway and Forum Drive. The Final Plat
depicts internal streets that will provide access to individual lots and circulation within the subdivision.

The plat depicts the necessary utility easements, wall maintenance easements, erosion hazard setback, and
stormwater management area.

The property is zoned PD-359 for single family residential use. The following table summarizes the density
and dimensional requirements.  The Final Plat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Density and Dimensional Requirements

Standard Required

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 110

Front Setback (Ft.) 25

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9499, Version: 1

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

· Prior to submitting the plat for final signatures, the applicant shall submit an entry feature, perimeter
screening, and landscape plan for review;

· Prior to submitting the plat for final signatures, the applicant shall submit an exhibit showing the
location and type of amenities that will be provided on internal open space lots per PD-359
requirements (page 10 of Ord 10243-2017); and

· Prior to submitting the plat for final signatures, the applicant shall submit a draft document that will
establish a homeowners association (HOA) for the subdivision.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



S Forum Dr

Outlet Pkwy

S G
re

at
 So

ut
hw

es
t P

kw
y

Ti
vo

li D
r

Augusta Ln

Ri
alt

o W
ay

Ca
ny

on
 R

d

Sara Jane Pkwy

W Ih 20 Wb  

For est Trai l Dr

Seven Hills Dr

Stoneway Dr

Tiber River Ln

Stresa Ln

Pr
air

ie 
Ri

dg
e  

Ta
m

ar
ac

k D
r

Colosseum Way

Cladius Dr

Carson Trl

Village GreenDr

Lin
k D

r

Spartacus Dr

Ki
m

be
rly

 Ln

Ranchview Dr

Rio Grande Dr
Olympia Dr

NovusCt

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P191102
Brighton Estates ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 1



ORDINANCE NO. 10243-2017

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE ZONING

ORDINANCE AND MAP TO REZONE A 19.942 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE

E. ROLAND SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1313 AND THE CD BALL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO.
197 IN THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,  TARRANT COUNTY,  TEXAS,  GENERALLY

LOCATED EAST OF SOUTH GREAT SOUTHWEST PARKWAY AND SOUTH OF SOUTH

FORUM DRIVE,   AND AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW,   FROM PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT 77 ( PD- 77) FOR COMMERCIAL USES TO A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

DISTRICT FOR SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USES WITH A BASE ZONING

DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY-SIX  ( SF-6)  DISTRICT;  SAID ZONING MAP AND

ORDINANCE BEING ORDINANCE NUMBER 4779 AND PASSED ON NOVEMBER 20, 1990;

REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;

CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE

AND APPROVAL

WHEREAS, the owners of the property described herein below filed application with the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas, petitioning an amendment of the Zoning Ordinance and Map of said city so as to change the
zoning designation of said property from Planned Development 77 ( PD- 77) to a Planned Development
for Single Family Residential Uses with a Base Zoning Designation of Single Family-Six ( SF-6)
District; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of Grand Prairie, Texas, held a public hearing on said
application on March 6, 2017, after written notice of such public hearing before the Planning and Zoning
Commission on the proposed rezoning had been sent to owners of real property lying within 300 feet of the
property on which the change of classification is proposed, said Notice having been given not less than ten

10) days before the date set for hearing to all such owners who rendered their said property for City taxes
as the ownership appears on the last approved City Tax Roll, and such Notice being served by depositing
the same, properly addressed and postage paid, in the City Post Office; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of said application, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of
Grand Prairie, Texas voted 7 to 0 to recommend to the City Council of Grand Prairie, Texas, that the
hereinafter described property be rezoned from its classification of Planned Development 77 ( PD-77)
District to a Planned Development District for Single Family Residential Uses with a Base Zoning
Designation of Single Family-Six( SF- 6) district; and

WHEREAS, Notice was given of a further public hearing to be held by the City Council of the City of
Grand Prairie, Texas, in the City Hall Plaza Building at 6: 30 o' clock P.M. on March 21, 2017, to consider
the advisability of amending the Zoning Ordinance and Map as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission, and all citizens and parties at interest were notified that they would have an opportunity to be
heard, such Notice of the time and place of such hearing having been given at least fifteen( 15) days prior to
such hearing by publication in the Fort Worth Star Telegram, Grand Prairie, Texas, a newspaper of general
circulation in such municipality; and

WHEREAS, all citizens and parties at interest have been given an opportunity to be heard on all the matter
of the proposed rezoning and the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, being informed as to the
location and nature of the use proposed on said property, as well as, the nature and usability of surrounding

property, have found and determined that the property in question, as well as, other property within the city
limits of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, has changed in character since the enactment of the original



Ordinance No. 10243- 2017

Page 2 of 6

Zoning Ordinance from its classification of Planned Development 77( PD-77) to a Planned Development
for Single Family Residential Uses with a Base Zoning Designation of Single Family-Six ( SF-6)
District and, by reason of changed conditions, does consider and find that this amendatory Ordinance
should be enacted since its provisions are in the public interest and will promote the health, safety and
welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND

PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT Ordinance Number 4779, being the Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas, showing the locations and boundaries of certain districts, and said Zoning Ordinance and
Map having been made a part of an Ordinance entitled:

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 28 OF THE CODE OF

ORDINANCES KNOWN AS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND

PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AS PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THE
20TH

DAY OF NOVEMBER,   1990,  TOGETHER WITH ALL AMENDMENTS

THERETO AND ENACTING A REVISED ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND

PROVIDING FOR ZONING REGULATIONS;  CREATING USE DISTRICTS IN

ACCORDANCE WITH A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN..."

and passed and approved November 20, 1990, as amended, is hereby further amended so as to rezone from
its classification of Planned Development 77 ( PD-77) to a Planned Development for Single Family
Residential Uses with a Base Zoning District of Single Family-Six ( SF-6) District as described in
Exhibit A- Legal Description and Exhibit B - Location Map, which are incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2.      PURPOSE AND INTENT

The intent of this zoning ordinance is to create a development framework that encourages and supports
higher standards.  Standards on infrastructure, landscaping, and construction are intended to provide for
the development of high quality residential development.

SECTION 3.      DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

A.       General

Development of the subject property shall be in accordance with and conform to the City of
Grand Prairie Unified Development Code  ( UDC)  and Resolution 3924 unless otherwise

specified herein.

B.       Zoning Exhibit/Concept Plan

The area depicted in Exhibit " C" - Concept Plan designates the Planned Development District

area.   The number of residential lots within the Planned Development District area shall not

exceed 61.

C.       Development Standards



Ordinance No. 10243- 2017

Page 3 of 6

1.  Density and Dimensional and Requirements- Minimum lot dimensions and other criteria for the
development of each single family lot shall be in conformance with the following:

a.   The minimum residential lot size shall be 5, 000 square feet.

b.  The minimum residential lot width shall be 50 feet.

c.   The minimum residential lot depth shall be 110 feet.

d.  The minimum front yard setback shall be 25 feet.

e.   The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 feet.

f.   The minimum internal side yard setback shall be 5 feet.

g.  The minimum side yard adjacent to a street setback shall be 15 feet.

h.  The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed 60%.

i.   Ten percent ( 10%) of all platted residential lots shall have a minimum living area of
1, 600 square feet or greater.

j.   Ten percent ( 10%) of all platted residential lots shall have a minimum living area of
1, 800 square feet.

k.  Eighty percent ( 80%) of all platted residential lots shall have a minimum living area
of 2,000 square feet.

2.  In lieu of J- Swing Garages the following shall apply:

a.   Front entry garages shall be offset a minimum of 5 feet from the front elevation of
the house.

b.  Front entry garages with two or more one-care wide single doors shall offset one
door 12 inches from the door that is closest to the street.

c.   Front entry garages with two-car wide doors shall recess the garage door a minimum
of 12 inches from the garage fagade.

d.  Front entry garages with two-car wide doors shall provide decorative elements.
Decorative elements may include cedar doors,  reveals/ textures,  and decorative
hardware.

e.   Front entry garages shall provide articulated architectural elements.  These elements

may include masonry in-filled gabled roof, dormer window features, boxed windows
and similar architectural elements.

f.   The front setback for houses with a side entry garage may be reduced by 5 feet.



Ordinance No. 10243- 2017

Page 4 of 6

g.  Carports shall be prohibited within the development.

3.  Masonry Materials

a.   Two-Story Structures

i. The masonry content for two-story structures shall be a minimum of 80%.

ii.  Fireplaces and chimney flues on exterior walls shall be 100%
masonry on all sides facing the street.   The sides facing the roof may be
stucco.

b.   Single- Story Structures

i. The minimum masonry content for single-story structures shall be 100%.

ii.  All fireplace chimney flues shall be encased in 100% masonry.

4.  Lot Landscaping - Each residential lot, prior to initial occupancy of the home, shall have the
following minimum landscaping and irrigation:

a.   1- three-inch caliper trees planted in the front yard of each house

b.  Tree species shall be in accordance with the City of Grand Prairie approved tree list.

c.   Front yard shrubs shall be provided for each house in any size increment totaling a
minimum of 30-gallons per residential lot.

d.  Residential lots shall be sodded in accordance with the requirement of the Unified

Development Code.

e.   Automatic underground irrigation, per the minimum requirements of the UDC shall

be installed throughout the lot.

5.  Lot Fencing - fencing on individual lots shall conform to the following minimum standards and
the UDC or the following standards; the stricter fencing requirements shall prevail:

a.   Fences shall be constructed of wood with metal posts, brick or wrought iron type

fence.

b.  Fence heights shall be a minimum of six feet ( 6') for wood fences and a maximum

of four feet( 4') for wrought iron types.

c.   Wood fences shall be constructed so posts, rails and other support structures are not

visible to the street rights-of-way.

6.  Open Space and Amenities - The designation of open spaces shall generally conform to Exhibit
D" - Conceptual Open Space Plan.



Ordinance No. 10243- 2017

Page 5 of 6

a.   Open spaces within the development may include pocket parks, ponds and/or water
features, walking paths, dog park, and playground.

b.  Open space features and amenities will be determined by the developer at the time of
platting.

c.   Open space features and amenities will be owned and maintained by the
homeowners association.

7.   Screening and Landscaping

a.   Per the Conceptual Open Space Plan( Exhibit D), the landscape area in Open Spaces

shall be planted with trees, shrubs and grass and shall be irrigated with an automatic

irrigation system.

b.  The required masonry screening wall shall meet specifications provided by the
Forum Estates PID.

c.   The Homeowners Association and PID # 5 shall maintain the areas along South
Forum Drive and South Great Southwest Parkway.  The HOA shall maintain the

Entry Features and Open Spaces.
8.  Other Requirements

a.   Mailboxes will be installed in a kiosk fashion located on an open space lot,

maintained by the HOA.

b.  Repeat Elevations - No duplicate house elevations may be built on a lot within four
4) lots of a house with the same elevation located on the same side of a street.  No

house may be built with the same elevation as the house located directly across the
street.

c.   Retaining Walls - Any retaining wall shall be constructed of approved stone.  The

use of wood or tie walls will not be allowed.  Retaining walls greater that 4- feet in
height shall be designed by an engineer licensed in the State of Texas.

d.  All utilities shall be constructed below ground, except for major high voltage

lines.

e.   All streets,  driveways and vehicular circulation areas shall be constructed of

concrete.  Temporary parking and drive areas for model homes may be constructed
of asphalt and/or approved pervious surfaces.

A fagade plan shall be approved by the City prior to the issuance of building permits.

SECTION 4.  HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

A mandatory homeowners association ( HOA) shall be created to enforce the HOA restrictions at the



Ordinance No. 10243- 2017

Page 6 of 6

expense of the property owners of the development.  The HOA shall maintain the common areas within the
development. Prior to recordation of the first final plat, HOA documents shall be submitted to the Planning
Department for review.

The subject site is within PID (Public Improvement District) #5.  Prior to recordation of the first final plat,

confirmation from the PID# 5 Board shall be submitted which indicates acceptance of the change of use and

incorporation of the subdivision wall, perimeter landscape into the PID' s maintenance responsibility.

SECTION 5.      SUBDIVISION ACCESS

The exact location and configuration of subdivision entrances from South Forum Drive and South Great

Southwest Parkway will be determined with the preliminary plat.

SECTION 6. THAT all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are specifically repealed.

SECTION 7. THAT this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and

approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 21' DAY OF MARCH, 2017.

APPROVED:

Ro en, Mayor

ATT T:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

i ecretary City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO. 10243- 2017

ZONING CASE NO. Z170101/ CP110101

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT NO. 359



n x

Nx o   

Southern Tract

WHEREAS ECOM REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC is the owner ofm19.942 acre parcel of land situated

n the E' Roland Survey, Abstract No. 1313 and the CD Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197| n the City ofGrand

Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas and being that portion of land aa recorded in Document No. Q204lS4764,

as recorded Un the Deed Records mfTarrant County, Texas and being more particularly described as
follows:

BEGINNING et the intersection of the western rh   n ofG hv Par m and the

youthenn line of Forum Drive;

THENCE SOO- 1757W, 1370.70' to the southeastern corner of the herein described tract;

THENCES89" S0o45° VV. G24. 25/ totheswmthvveaterncornerofthehere| ndescribedtrmcC;

THENCE NOO- 29' 17- E, 1453.3V to the northwestern corner of the herein described tract, said comer

also being the Point of Curvature of a non- tangent circular curve to the right having a radius of 450.GO', a
central angle of23°Z7 4̂1" and a chord length mfIO2/58';

THENCE along said curve to the right, 184.27' to the Point of Reverse Curvature of a tangent circular

curve tu the left having a radius ofS5D.00', a central angle of23~13' D4° and e chord length of22l.2Cy

THENCE a|on aandcurvetothe| mf 222.72^'^

THENCE S09" 51~25yE, 223' 33' to the POINT( JF BEGINNING and containing 858,G7O square feet or19.942
acres of land.



Exhibit !!B!       

fFf: ' kllu ufg,       _     •

i

FORUM

TF

I

GA° C
w 0

ASHWOOD

O a r SEVEN HILLS '

RIALTO

W

0
LD

Q FF
W f

3
AUGUSTA

s

h

TIBER RIVER.; R

II

5:7 t q'YF
t Fri°  !

hO      CASE LOCATION MAP City of Grand Prairie
Case Number Z170101/ CP170101

Planning and Development

9( 972)

Planned Development for Single Family a
www. ztx.org

7

N www.gptx.org
PLANNING



Exhibit " C!

LEGEND LAND USE

SP SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
AppreA el ReE66enli. 1 Unilu
50' X I ID LOTS Wkinnum)

OPEN SPACE SUFFER Prupeeed NM Denelty:
9. 35 unllA per Acre

o FUTURE ROW! BOUNDARY

FORuM At
GPrvp P1uhRT

g LFORUM OR.

PARK OPEN SPACE—

s

ROW TAKING

I- 0, 9 AC)

20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

rcp l
Atrbor Crtek a

8 1
t7

gi
J_

PARK/ OPEN SPACE

EXISTING 30' STORM
SEWER ESMT    —

WO YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
AT FISH C EH K̀

APPROX LOCATION)      
oeteanoNAaEA

HIBIT

BCAlE. 1'• M

roxQ ZONING CHANGE

CONCEPT PLAN

1701 NUMBER:ZI IOIDU

se-

TDI01

EXidUI Use: PD- I]Propas6tl U66 PD RecM6nllel

GRAND

pPRAIRIE
pRACT

iFWWNV W1i

Planning Department
OWNER:

ONO EOOM flee! E OE ROAD
MAR 0 2017 360 17400 AD1 SUITE 500

OALIAS, TX I5I40

Received



Exhibit " D"

j,  LEGEND LAND USE

50' SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
Appma 61 Resl4m6nl Units
50 X 110' LOTS( Minimum)

OPEN SPACE I BUFFER
Pmpo. a4 NM Dmslly:

FUTURE ROW l BOUNDARY
4. 35 unite par Aere

FOye" A At

geA'NDP rfP E

FORUM DR. 

PARK/ OPEN

SPACE
I

1uw
FORUM DR.

PLAYGROUND

tff
I

I

TRAIL

I ROW TAKING

H- 0. 9 AC)

aZ
20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

Arbor Creek
A-dr itiPn W f}}f BUFFER TREES

O 4-I I
25- 50' O.C-

I

MAILKIOSK a       —._

DOG PARK

EXISTING 30' STORM k
SEWER ESMT

100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
AT FISH Clirk

APPROX LOCATION) BErENTIONAREA
r Ramx

EXISTING TREES 9aASE 1' e0

EXHIBIT
GRE

ZONING CHANCE

F\
5N CONCEPTUAL OPEN SPACE

PLAN

CASE NUMBER:

Z1T0101ICP170101

Existing Uae: PD47
Propoaad Use' PC Residential
GRAND PRAIRIE TRACT

p6dlKreom4aramnumvoolr

ct

F OWNER:
9l 7 ECOM Real EWta Mennoment

13760 NOEL ROAD

r SUITE 500

DALLAS. TX 75240



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9500 Name: P191103 - Final Plat - Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1,
Block 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: P191103 - Final Plat - Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 4). Lynn Creek
Addition, Lot 1, Block 1, creating a single lot on 15.636 acres.  Tract 4, 5B, and 6C of Jerome C. Lynn
Survey, Abstract No. 972, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A, within the SH
360 Corridor Overlay District, addressed as 2500 Webb Lynn Rd, and generally located east of SH
360 and south of Lynn Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy. The agent is Reece Flanagan, Harris Kocher
Smith, Josh Basler, AD Spanos, and the owner is Robert Barham, KP Land Partners, LP.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P191103 - Final Plat - Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 4). Lynn Creek Addition, Lot
1, Block 1, creating a single lot on 15.636 acres.  Tract 4, 5B, and 6C of Jerome C. Lynn Survey, Abstract No.
972, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A, within the SH 360 Corridor Overlay
District, addressed as 2500 Webb Lynn Rd, and generally located east of SH 360 and south of Lynn
Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy. The agent is Reece Flanagan, Harris Kocher Smith, Josh Basler, AD Spanos, and
the owner is Robert Barham, KP Land Partners, LP.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat of Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1, creating a single lot on 15.636 acres. Tract 4, 5B, and 6C of
Jerome C. Lynn Survey, Abstract No. 972, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A,
within the SH 360 Corridor Overlay District, addressed as 2500 Webb Lynn Rd, and generally located east of
SH 360 and south of Lynn Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9500, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one lot on 15.636 acres to facilitate multi-family development in the
SH-360 Corridor.

ADJACENT LAND USES:
The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.
Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-255A Gas Well Padsite, Floodplain and Floodway

South PD-255A Single Family Residential

West PD-255A Undeveloped

East PD-255A; A Single Family Residential; Floodplain and Floodway

HISTORY:

· August 6, 2019: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Lynn Creek
Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (Case Number P190801).

· September 17, 2019: City Council approved a Site Plan for Lynn Creek Apartments (Case Number
S190801).

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts the necessary utility easements that will be established by a separate instrument. Prior to
submitting the plat for final signatures, the applicant shall add the instrument numbers to the spaces provided
on the plat.  The plat meets the minimum lot size and dimensions established by PD-255A.

Table 2: Dimensional Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 310,452.12 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 535.25 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 524.83 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 100 63 Yes*

*City Council approved a variance to the required front yard setback on September 17, 2019.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following condition:

1. Prior to submitting the plat for final signatures, the applicant shall add the instrument numbers to the spaces
provided on the plat.

2. Per Site Plan approval, developer is responsible for ensuring subdivision screening wall is in place prior to
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



S H
wy

 36
0 N

b

W
aterford Dr

Ector Dr

Webb Lynn Rd

Lorenzo Dr

Silver Sage Ln

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b

Ridgeway Dr

Summerwood Dr

Hideaway Dr

Guilia Dr

Mira
be

lla
 Blvd

Lynn Creek / Mildred Walker Pkwy
Siesta Trl

Crestview
Dr

Oak Crest DrPark Springs Dr

Paolo Dr Cesareo DrSu
san

na
 Dr

Grandview Dr

Fairview Dr

Oak Briar Ln

Riverwood Ln

Pompi Dr

Summerview Dr

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P191103
Lynn Creek Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9501 Name: RP191001 - Replat - Shady Grove Acres, Lots 15A1
& 16R

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: RP191001 - Replat - Shady Grove Acres, Lots 15A1 & 16R (City Council District 1).  Shady Grove
Acres Addition, lots 15-A1 & 16-R on two single family lots on 2.1 acres and a portion of one lot out of
the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and
generally located north of Leyfair Drive and approximately 1,033 feet west of Hardrock Road.  Zoned
Single Family-1 (SF-1) District within the State Highway-161 (SH-161) Corridor Overlay and
addressed as 1414 Leyfair Drive. The applicant is Luke Keeton, Keeton Surveying Co. and the owner
is Charles & Lena Bancroft.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
RP191001 - Replat - Shady Grove Acres, Lots 15A1 & 16R (City Council District 1).  Shady Grove Acres
Addition, lots 15-A1 & 16-R on two single family lots on 2.1 acres and a portion of one lot out of the John C.
Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located north of
Leyfair Drive and approximately 1,033 feet west of Hardrock Road.  Zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District
within the State Highway-161 (SH-161) Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1414 Leyfair Drive. The applicant
is Luke Keeton, Keeton Surveying Co. and the owner is Charles & Lena Bancroft.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:
Consider a Replat to establish two single family residential lots on 2.1 acres. The purpose for the replat is to
consolidate four (4) lots into two. The 2.1 acres consists of four lots (1404 & 1410 Leyfair Drive -Lot 15-A1
and 1414 Leyfair Drive & 1521 Jelmak Ave- Lot 16-R) out of the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City
of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located north of Leyfair Drive and approximately 1,033
feet west of Hardrock Road. Zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District and lies within the State Highway-161

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9501, Version: 1

(SH-161) Overlay Corridor District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:
The purpose of the Replat is to combine four (4) single-family residential lots into two (2) residential lots.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing land use for surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North Single Family-One (SF-1) District Single Family Residential

South Single Family-One (SF-1) District Single Family Residential

East Single Family-One (SF-1) District Single Family Residential

West Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Uses.

PLAT FEATURES:
Both lots have existing single-family residential houses and both comply with SF-1 zoning district dimensional
standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC) as proposed.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the replat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Leyfair Dr

Jelmak Av

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: RP191001

Shady Grove Acres, Lots 15A1 & 16R
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9502 Name: RP191102 – Replat- Durable, Inc. Addition, Lot 1A,
Block 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: RP191102 - Replat - Durable, Inc. Addition, Lot 1A, Block 1 (City Council District 1). A replat to
establish an industrial lot on 7.27 acres, on multiple properties out of the John C. Read Survey,
Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located northeast of Roy
Orr Blvd. and Oakdale Lane, specifically addressed at 3001 Roy Orr Blvd.  Zoned Light Industrial (LI)
District and Planned Development-124 (PD-124) District and including Specific Use Permit-1078
(SUP-1078). The property lies within the State Highway-161 (SH-161) Corridor Overlay.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B RP191102

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
RP191102 - Replat - Durable, Inc. Addition, Lot 1A, Block 1 (City Council District 1). A replat to establish an
industrial lot on 7.27 acres, on multiple properties out of the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located northeast of Roy Orr Blvd. and Oakdale Lane,
specifically addressed at 3001 Roy Orr Blvd.  Zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and Planned Development-
124 (PD-124) District and including Specific Use Permit-1078 (SUP-1078). The property lies within the State
Highway-161 (SH-161) Corridor Overlay.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:
Consider a Replat to establish one industrial lot on 7.27 acres to consolidate two properties into one lot to
accommodate the redevelopment of the property. The property is situated in the John C. Read Survey, Abstract
No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located northeast of Roy Orr Blvd. and
Oakdale Lane, specifically addressed at 3001 Roy Orr Blvd. Zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and Planned
Development-124 (PD-124) District and Specific Use Permit-1078 (SUP-1078). The property lies within the
State Highway-161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9502, Version: 1

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing land use for surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Uses

South Light Industrial (LI) District RV Park

East Planned Development-105 (PD-105) District Grand Pace Mobile Home Park

West Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Uses.

HISTORY:
City Council recently granted Specific Use Permit-1078 (SUP-1078) with associated site plan S190702 on the
referenced property to allow for Commercial Truck Leasing/Rental Services on July 16, 2019. (Hogan Truck
Leasing Services)

COMMENTS:
The 7.27 -acre property is generally located at the northeast corner of Roy Orr Boulevard and Oakdale Lane.
The property is zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Planned Development-124 (PD-124) Districts and lies within
the SH-121 Overlay Corridor District.
City Council recently granted Specific Use Permit-1078 (SUP-1078) with associated site plan S190702 on the
referenced property to allow for Commercial Truck Leasing/Rental Services on July 16, 2019. (Hogan Truck
Leasing Services)
The replat as submitted combines the existing two lots into one as depicted on the approved site plan, dedicates
required detention easement and reflects the existing easements on the property.

RECOMMENDATION
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the replat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Roy Orr Blvd

Oakdale Ln

Big Bend Dr

Ri
ve

r R
id

ge
 B

lvd

Knoll Ridge Ct

Oak Knoll Way

Piney Meadow Pl

Peach Tree Bend

Farmers Rd

Ri
ve

r R
id

ge
 B

lvd
Ri

ve
r R

id
ge

 B
lvd

Ro
y O

rr 
Blv

d

Ri
ve

r R
id

ge
 B

lvd

R iver Ridge Blvd

Farmers Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: RP191102

Durable Inc. Addn, Blk 1, Lot 1A
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9189 Name: Z190604/CP190604 - Grand Oaks Single Family
Residences

Status:Type: Ordinance Postponement

File created: In control:7/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: Z190604/CP190604 - Planned Development Request/Concept Plan - Grand Oaks Single Family
Residences (City Council District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan/PD Amendment for 59 lots
intended for single-family residential development consisting of attached and detached units on the
site of the former clubhouse for Grand Oaks Country Club.  9.4 acres out of the Aaron Wilson Survey,
City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-198) and addressed as
3502 Country Club Dr.
Tabled

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

TabledCity Council8/20/2019 1

Planning and Zoning Commission8/5/2019 1

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

Z190604/CP190604 - Planned Development Request/Concept Plan - Grand Oaks Single Family Residences
(City Council District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan/PD Amendment for 59 lots intended for single-
family residential development consisting of attached and detached units on the site of the former clubhouse for
Grand Oaks Country Club.  9.4 acres out of the Aaron Wilson Survey, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-198) and addressed as 3502 Country Club Dr.
Tabled

Presenter

David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Tabled

Analysis

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9503 Name: S191102 - Site Plan - Bush Pioneer Centre

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: S191102 - Site Plan - Bush Pioneer Centre (City Council District 2). Site Plan for Bush & Pioneer
Centre for Retail and Restaurant uses on Lot 5R, Block A. Located at 1210 Arkansas, legally
described as Lot 5R, Block A, Bush & Pioneer Centre Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, Zoned PD-351 within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay. The applicant is Kevin Wier, Spiars
Engineering, Inc. and the owner is Robert Dorazil, Bush Pioneer Property LP c/o UCD Development.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan

Exhibit C - Elevations

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S191102 - Site Plan - Bush Pioneer Centre (City Council District 2). Site Plan for Bush & Pioneer Centre for
Retail and Restaurant uses on Lot 5R, Block A. Located at 1210 Arkansas, legally described as Lot 5R, Block
A, Bush & Pioneer Centre Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned PD-351 within the SH
161 Corridor Overlay. The applicant is Kevin Wier, Spiars Engineering, Inc. and the owner is Robert Dorazil,
Bush Pioneer Property LP c/o UCD Development.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Presenter
Nyliah Acosta, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for Bush & Pioneer Centre for Retail and Restaurant uses on Lot 5R, Block A. Located at 1210
Arkansas, legally described as Lot 5R, Block A, Bush & Pioneer Centre Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, Zoned PD- 351, within the SH-161 Overlay.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9503, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 6,000 sq. ft. building with Retail and Restaurant uses on 1.155 acres. Any
commercial development in an overlay district or planned development district requires City Council approval
of a Site Plan. Development at this location requires Site Plan approval by City Council.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-351 Walmart

South PD-273A Single-Family Residences, Retail Strip
West PD- 351 Quick Serve Restaurants
East PD-351 Quick Serve Restaurants

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposed uses are Restaurant and Retail. The Site Plan includes a 4,950 sq. ft. restaurant and 1,050 sq.ft.
for a barber/salon, two way circulation, dumpster enclosure, and 57 parking spaces. The site will be accessible
from internal private drives with mutual access and restriping for cars to make a left turn into the site from the
Walmart access drive.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code
(UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 50,294 Yes
Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 328 Yes
Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 262 Yes
Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 Yes
Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 24 Yes
Max. Height (Ft.) 25 30 No
Max. Floor Area Ratio (FAR).5:1 .11:1 Yes

Parking Requirements

The property is subject to parking requirements in Article 10 of the UDC. The following table summarizes
these requirements. The proposal meets the parking requirements.

Table 3: Parking Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Restaurant Parking 47
Barber Shop Parking 20
Total Spaces 67 57 No*

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9503, Version: 1
Table 3: Parking Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Restaurant Parking 47
Barber Shop Parking 20
Total Spaces 67 57 No*

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. The
table below summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets or exceeds the landscape and screening
requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.)5,029 12,944 Yes

Trees 8 9 Yes
Shrubs 111 402 Yes

Building Design

The building is primarily brick, stone, and stucco.

The following elements have been selected: Material mix, stone accent, color contrast, corner treatment,

articulated public entrance, articulation elements, 25% covered walkways, awnings, canopies, or porticos. The

proposed building elevations meet the building design requirements in Appendix F.

Variances:

1. The Development Review Committee (DRC) administratively granted a 15% parking reduction for 57 total
parking spaces from the required 67 spaces.

2. The applicant is requesting a variance to the 30% window requirement for the east façade; 25% windows are
being provided.

3. The applicant is also requesting a variance from the 25 ft height limitation to allow for a 30 ft tall building.
However, the height of the building is still within character of the surrounding area.

Staff does not object to these variances as they are consistent with other buildings within the Bush-Pioneer
development.

RECOMMENDATION:

DRC recommends approval of the Site Plan.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



R

130 1300 Ft S191102/ 1210 Arkansas Ln Date: 10/14/2019 Time: 8:23:15 AM

This data has been compiled by the City of Grand
 Prai rie IT/GIS department. Various official and
 unofficial  sources were used to gather this
 in formation. Every effort was made to ensure
 the accuracy of this data, however, no guarantee
 is g iven or implied as to  the accuracy of said data.

Exhibit A- Location Map



Scale: 1"=20'   October, 2019  SEI Job No. 19-156

CASE NO: S191102
SITE PLAN

BUSH PIONEER CENTRE
LOT 5R, BLOCK A

IN THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
ALLEN JENKINS SURVEY, ABST. NO. 713

50,294 Sq. Ft./1.155 Acres
Current Zoning: PD-351 w/161 Overlay

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR
Spiars Engineering, Inc.

765 Custer Road, Suite 100
Plano, TX 75075

Telephone: (972) 422-0077
TBPE No. F-2121

Contact: Kevin Wier

PROJECT
LOCATION

OWNER / APPLICANT
Bush Pioneer Property, LP

7001 Preston Road, Suite 410
Dallas, TX 75205

Telephone: (214) 224-4600
Contact: Robert Dorazil

variable width R.O.W.

Inst. No. 201600194923 OPRDCT

Inst. No. 201700325889 OPRDCT

Exhibit B - Site Plan



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan



Exhibit C - Building Elevations



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9505 Name: S191105 - Site Plan - Sivagiri Ashram of North
America

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: S191105 - Site Plan - Sivagiri Ashram of North America (City Council District 1). A request for
proposed single-story, 5880 sq. ft. place of worship on 3.25 acres (Dalworth Medical Center Addition,
Block 1, Lot 2) situated in the P.H. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 543 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Tarrant
County located northeast of Dalworth Street and Duncan Perry Rd., more specifically addressed at
420 Duncan Perry Rd.  The property is zoned Office (O) District and is located within the Great
Southwest Industrial (GSW) Overlay Corridor.  The agent is Matthew Thomas, Thomas Site
Development Engineering and the owner is Manoj Thankachen.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit C - Elevations

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S191105 - Site Plan - Sivagiri Ashram of North America (City Council District 1). A request for proposed
single-story, 5880 sq. ft. place of worship on 3.25 acres (Dalworth Medical Center Addition, Block 1, Lot 2)
situated in the P.H. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 543 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Tarrant County located
northeast of Dalworth Street and Duncan Perry Rd., more specifically addressed at 420 Duncan Perry Rd.  The
property is zoned Office (O) District and is located within the Great Southwest Industrial (GSW) Overlay
Corridor.  The agent is Matthew Thomas, Thomas Site Development Engineering and the owner is Manoj
Thankachen.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Consider approval of a Site Plan to allow for a single-story, 5,880 sq. ft. place of worship. The 3.25-acreCity of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9505, Version: 1

Consider approval of a Site Plan to allow for a single-story, 5,880 sq. ft. place of worship. The 3.25-acre
property is zoned Office (O) District and is situated in the P.H. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 543, City of Grand
Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. The property is platted as Dalworth Medical Center Addition, Block 1, Lot 1.
The property is generally located northeast of Dalworth Street and Duncan Perry Road, more specifically
addressed at 420 Duncan Perry Road. The property is located in City Council District 1, represented by
Councilwoman Jorja Clemson.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use

North Single Family-Three (SF-3) District Sherwood Estates Residential

East General Retail (GR) District Undeveloped

West Duncan Perry Rd City of Arlington

South Office (O) District Assisted Living Facility

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

Previously, medical and health-related uses occurred on the property. The property has since remained vacant
for quite some time.  The applicant proposes to construct a single-story house of worship    The undeveloped
3.25-acre lot has street frontage along Duncan Perry Road (city limit boundary of Grand Prairie and City of
Arlington).  Abutting commercial properties to the east are undeveloped, existing assisted living and place of
worship uses are to the south and existing single-family residential uses are to the north.

Lot & Dimensional Standards:
As proposed, the development meets or exceeds all minimum lot & dimensional standards.

Ordinance
Provision

LI Zone District Standards Proposed Conditions Meets

Min. Lot Size    15,000  sq. ft. 3.25 acres (137,586.ft.) Yes

Min. Lot Width    100 ft. Approx. 311 ft. Yes

Min. Lot Depth    150 ft. Approx. 270 ft. Yes

Front Yard Setback    25 ft. 62 ft. @ Duncan Perry Yes

Internal Side Yard    35 ft. N/A Yes

Rear Yard Setback     0 ft. 96 ft. Yes

Bldg. Separation    25 N/A N/A

Bldg. Height   25 ft. 28 ft. to top plate for Place of Worship ok Yes

Bldg. Coverage 1:1 Floor Area Ratio 0..25:1 % Yes

Paving Type Concrete or Equivalent Concrete Drives & Asphalt Parking No

PROPOSED CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The 5,880 square foot facility, required parking and landscaping features shall occupy the southern portion of
the property, leaving the remaining northern portion undisturbed.
As proposed, the facility offers a unique far-eastern architectural style and theme.  The single-story facility

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9505, Version: 1

provides concentric dome features on each side (twin articulation) and above the main entryway.  The exterior
material shall consist of 100% brick masonry with stucco accent finishes of varying painted colors.
The proposed development complies with and exceeds UDC regulations with the exception for concrete surface
paving for private parking lot.

Access and Parking:
Primary access to the place of worship is from a 24’ concrete commercial paved driveway along Duncan Perry
Road. Parking requirements are based on the use of the facility. Place of worship parking is based on one (1)
space per (3) three seats and/or occupancy. (42) Forty-two spaces are required. The applicant provides 47
spaces including two accessible spaces. UDC, Article 10, Section 4, Minimum Pavement Construction On Or
Within Non-Residential Property requires access ways, drives and parking be constructed of concrete paving.
Subsection 10.4.6 Alternative Pavement Type for Non-Residential Development allows for an exception to the
concrete standard to allow for asphalt paving subject to approval by the City Engineer. The applicant is
requesting that the forty-(40) parking spaces previously paved as asphalt surface utilize to the same surface
type.

Landscape and Screening:
UDC, Article 8, Section 8.5.1 (B) allows for a schools and/or church uses to utilize the ‘Artificial Lot’
provision, which considers the undisturbed portion of the property be excluded from the overall landscaping
requirements for one-acre tracts or greater. DRC determined this site qualifies for that exception and meets
those standards of the provision.

The proposed site exceeds the minimum landscaping 10% requirements for Office districts, providing for a
total of 24,151 sq. ft. (39%) of irrigated landscaping provided. The site preserves large caliper Cottonwood,
Pecans and Hackberry trees onsite utilizing the tree credit provision. Seventeen (17) existing trees are
preserved. The site shall provide three (3) street trees and three (3) internal trees totaling twenty-three (23)
trees provided. Beyond the irrigated sod installed upfront, over 60 shrubs are provided.

The following table summarizes landscape requirements and provided:

Standard (10%)               Required                Provided Meets

Landscape Area- 60,881 sf                  6,088                  24,151       Yes

Trees    0 w/ 17 Trees Preserved                     6       Yes

Shrubs        60 w/ 6 Tree Credit                     61       Yes

Street Trees                      3
3

      Yes

Dumpster Enclosure:
The applicant is proposing to build a 12’ X 12’ (inside dimension) masonry dumpster enclosure that will be clad
in the same masonry materials as the building.  The proposed location for dumpster enclosure is located and
orientated in such a manner to be accessed form concrete surface driveway.  The enclosure shall conform to city
standards.

VARIANCES:
The applicant requests to use a new asphalt surface in place of the existing asphalt paving south of the proposed
building.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9505, Version: 1

RECOMMENDATION:
Development Review Committee recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



May Ln

April Ln

Du
nc

an
 Pe

rr
y R

d

Dalworth St

Nw
 24

th
 St

Dalworth StDalworth St

Du
nc

an
Pe

rr
y R

d

Nw
 24

th
 St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: S191105
Sivagari Ashram of North America

´ Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A



Exhibit B - Site Plan



Exhibit C - Elevations

















OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU OHU

LOT 2
BLOCK 1

DALWORTH MEDICAL CENTER
CAB. A, SL. 2747

P.R.T.C.T.

O
H

U
O

H
U

///
///

/////////////////////////////////

///
///

///
///

///
///

E
T

O
H

U

T

D
U

N
C

A
N

 P
E

R
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
60

' R
.O

.W
.

C
A

B
. A

, S
L.

 2
74

7 
- P

.R
.T

.C
.T

.

7.5' UTILITY EASEMENT
CAB. A, SL. 2747 - P.R.T.C.T.

7.5' UTILITY EASEMENT
CAB. A, SL. 2747 - P.R.T.C.T.

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
C

A
B

. A
, S

L.
 2

74
7 

- P
.R

.T
.C

.T
.

ACCESS EASEMENT
FOR LOT 1

CAB. A, SL. 2747
P.R.T.C.T.

25
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E

C
A

B
. A

, S
L.

 2
74

7,
 P

.R
.T

.C
.T

.

SHERWOOD ESTATES
VOL. 388-C, PG. 142

P.R.T.C.T.

LI

P.H. FORD SURVEY,

ABSTRACT NO. 543

N 87°32'19" E  85.59' N 89°32'19" E  175.48'

S
 0

0°
44

'1
6"

 E
  5

81
.8

5'

S 89°12'13" W  145.04'

N
 0

0°
41

'4
9"

 W
  1

55
.1

3'

S 89°11'29" W  125.35'

22"COTTONWOOD

13"COTTONWOOD

13"COTTONWOOD
18"COTTONWOOD

6"CEDAR

21"COTTONWOOD

20"COTTONWOOD

15"COTTONWOOD

18"COTTONWOOD

6"CEDAR

11"COTTONWOOD

10"COTTONWOOD

17"COTTONWOOD

23"COTTONWOOD

12"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY
9"HACKBERRY

23"MULBERRY

6"CEDAR

6"HACKBERRY

24"COTTONWOOD

6"PEAR

8"CHINA

19"MULBERRY

10"CEDAR ELM

20"HACKBERRY

15"COTTONWOOD

7"CEDAR

12"HACKBERRY
14"HACKBERRY

14"HACKBERRY
14"HACKBERRY

13"HACKBERRY
11"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY

11"HACKBERRY
7"HACKBERRY7"HACKBERRY

15"HACKBERRY

6"HACKBERRY
12"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY

14"HACKBERRY

20"HACKBERRY

8"HACKBERRY

11"HACKBERRY

14"HACKBERRY
6"HACKBERRY

11"HACKBERRY

6"HACKBERRY

16"HACKBERRY

14"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY

8"HACKBERRY

7"HACKBERRY

15"HACKBERRY

13"HACKBERRY

8"HACKBERRY

9"HACKBERRY
11"HACKBERRY

9"HACKBERRY
9"HACKBERRY

25"HACKBERRY

27"HACKBERRY 10"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY
16"PECAN

16"MULBERY

25"HACKBERRY

16"HACKBERRY

9"HACKBERRY

7"HACKBERRY

2-7"HACKBERRY
2-7"HACKBERRY

7"HACKBERRY

TBM#2
PK NAIL SET

Z=570.33

C
1

(N 88°15'00"E 85.55') (N 89°45'00"E 175.40')

(S
 0

0°
00

'0
0"

W
 5

81
.9

9'
)

(S 89°56'29"W 145.20')

(N
 0

0°
00

'0
0"

W
 1

55
.0

0'
)

(S 90°00'00"W 125.20')

571

571

571

57
1

571

57
0

57
0

570

57
0

570

57
0

570

570

569

569

569

56
9

56
8

568

568

568

56
7

567

56
6

56
6

56
5

AC

569

11"HACKBERRY

LOT 1
BLOCK 1

DALWORTH MEDICAL CENTER
CAB. A, SL. 2747

P.R.T.C.T.

7"CHINA

N
 0

0°
46

'3
1"

 W
  (

31
1.

45
')

(N
 0

0°
00

'0
0"

 E
)

9"HACKBERRY

7"HACKBERRY

18"HACKBERRY

12"HACKBERRY

7"HACKBERRY

14"HACKBERRY

11"HACKBERRY

15' BUILDING LINE

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

6"HACKBERRY

7

13
77

13











































S
IV

A
G

IR
I A

S
H

R
A

M
 

S
IV

A
G

IR
I A

S
H

R
A

M
 O

F 
N

O
R

TH
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
  

42
0 

D
U

N
C

A
N

 P
E

R
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
 

SHEET NO.

L1.01

























































  

Jurisdiction of Project

Owner & Professionals Information

REGULATORY AUTHORITIES:

PLANNING DIVISION
206 W. CHURCH ST.
P.O. BOX 534045
GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75053
972 237-8255

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATION
ELIMINATION OF ARCHITECTURAL BARRIERS
E.O. THOMPSON STATE OFFICE BUILDING
920 COLORADO
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701
(512) 463-3211
(512) 475-2886 (FAX)

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ARTICLE 8 - LANDSCAPE AND SCREENING

A. ARTIFICIAL LOT
TOTAL LOT OF DEVELOPMENT - 137,422 SF
ARTIFICIAL LOT SIZE - 60,881.53 SF - 44%

B. LANDSCAPE REQUIRED BY ZONING DISTRICTS
ZONING  OFFICE (O)  - 10%
ARTIFICIAL LOT SIZE - 60,882 SF
REQUIRED: 6,088 SF     PROVIDED: 24,151 SF

C. TREES - ONE TREE PER 500 SF OF REQUIRED LANDSCAPE
REQUIRED: 12.1 TREES
PROVIDED: 24 TREE CREDITS (SEE EXIST TREE LIST)

NOTE: 8.7.3 TREE CREDITS
'WHEN EXISTING TREES ARE USED TO FULFILL SCREENING AND LANDSCAPE
REQUIREMENTS, THEIR LOCATIONS SHALL BE ACCEPTED AND THE FORMAL
SPACING REQUIREMENTS OF THE SCREENING AND LANDSCAPE STANDARDS
MAY BE WAIVED.

D.  SHRUBS - ONE SHRUB PER 50 SF OF REQUIRED LANDSCAPE
REQUIRED: 121 SHRUBS
PROVIDED: 60 SHRUBS - REPLACED BY 6 NEW TREES
+ 61 SHRUBS

E.  LANDSCAPE DOES NOT OBSTRUCT TRAFFIC VISIBILITY.

UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC SPRINKLING SYSTEM PROVIDED.
SYSTEM DESIGNED AND INSTALLED ACCORDING TO TCEQ LAWS AND
REGULATIONS PROVIDING FOR 100% COVERAGE ON ALL LANDSCAPE AND TURF.
THE SYSTEM SHALL INCLUDE A FREEZE-RAIN SENSOR.

Landscaping Requirements

Irrigation Requirements

Site Location

DRAWING KEY

PLANT LIST

LANDSCAPE PLANTING PLAN

ENGINEER
THOMAS SITE DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING INC.

4604 BILL SIMMONS ROAD
COLLEYVILLE, TX. 76034

ATTN: MATHEW THOMAS, PE,  214-680-2728

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
FELDMAN DESIGN STUDIOS

P.O. BOX 832346, RICHARDSON, TEXAS 75083
ATTN: CAROL FELDMAN,  972-523-4944

CAROL@FELDMANDESIGN.COM

OWNER
SIVAGIRI ASHRAM OF NORTH AMERICA 

420 DUNCAN PERRY ROAD, GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 
ATTN: MANOJ THANKACHEN; PHONE: 913-709-5193

SITE

G
R

A
N

D
 P

R
A

IR
IE

, T
X

 7
50

50
 

Scale: 1" = 30'

ARTIFICIAL LOT LAYOUT & PLANTING PLAN

EXISTING TREE  LIST

CASE #S191105

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9504 Name: S191104 - Site Plan - Avilla Traditions

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: S191104 - Site Plan - Avilla Traditions (City Council District 4).  Avilla Traditions, a 218-unit
development that includes a mixture of detached and attached single-story homes for lease on a
single 18.92-acre lot. Tracts 5 and 5A of E. Roland Survey, Abstract No. 1313, City of Grand Prairie,
Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-391, and located on the northwest corner of S. Forum Drive and S.
Great Southwest Pkwy. The agent is Kevin Wier, Spiars Engineering, Inc., the applicant is Jason
Flory, NexMetro, and the owner is Daniel Satsky, Ashton Woods - Dallas Division.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S191104 - Site Plan - Avilla Traditions (City Council District 4).  Avilla Traditions, a 218-unit development that
includes a mixture of detached and attached single-story homes for lease on a single 18.92-acre lot. Tracts 5 and
5A of E. Roland Survey, Abstract No. 1313, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-391, and
located on the northwest corner of S. Forum Drive and S. Great Southwest Pkwy. The agent is Kevin Wier,
Spiars Engineering, Inc., the applicant is Jason Flory, NexMetro, and the owner is Daniel Satsky, Ashton Woods
- Dallas Division.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for Avilla Traditions, a 218-uinit development that includes a mixture of detached and attached single-
story homes for lease on a single 18.92-acre lot. Tracts 5 and 5A of E. Roland Survey, Abstract No. 1313, City
of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-391, and located on the northwest corner of S. Forum Drive
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9504, Version: 1

of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-391, and located on the northwest corner of S. Forum Drive
and S. Great Southwest Pkwy.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 218-unit multi-family development on 18.92 acres. Any multi-family
development or development in a planned development district requires City Council approval of a Site Plan.
Development at this location requires site plan approval by City Council because the property is being
developed for multi-family use and zoned PD-391.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-277 Undeveloped

South PD-359 Undeveloped

West PD-77 Multi-Family Residential

East PD-231; PD:231B School; Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· June 20, 2017: City Council approved a Zoning Change/Concept Plan (Case Number
Z170604/CP170601), creating a planned development district for single family residential uses. PD-
361 establishes Single Family-Six as the base zoning district which allows a density of 8.7 units per
acre.  The approved Concept Plan depicts 92 residential lots.

· April 2, 2018: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Brighton Estates
Phase 1B (Case Number P180402).  The Preliminary Plat depicts 80 residential lots.

· July 16, 2019: City Council approved a Zoning Change/Concept Plan (Case Number
Z190601/CP190601), creating a planned development district for multi-family use.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant intends to construct a 218-unit development with single-story homes for lease on 18.9 acres. The
development includes a mixture of one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and three-bedroom detached and attached
houses on a common lot. Maintenance of the units, common areas, open spaces, and backyards will be the
responsibility of the management company.

The development will include two controlled-access entrances, one off of Great Southwest Pkwy, and one off of
Forum Dr, and an exit-only drive on to Great Southwest Pkwy.

The Site Plan depicts a centrally located leasing office and amenity center. Units are organized around a central
green space amenity which includes outdoor seating areas with string lighting, shade structures, outdoor grills,
and lawn games.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the standards in PD-391. The following table evaluates the density and dimensional
standards of the proposed development.  The proposal meets the density and dimensional standards.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard PD-391 Proposed Meets

Max. Density (Units Per Acre)12 12 Yes

Min. Living Area 1 Bedroom (Sq. Ft.)630 637 Yes

Min. Living Area 2 Bedrooms (Sq. Ft.)940 960 Yes

Min. Living Area 3 Bedrooms (Sq. Ft.)1,195 1,236 Yes

Max. Single-Bed Units (%)60 31 Yes

Min. Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 824,135 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) 100 1,411.33 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) 120 597.08 Yes

Min. Front Setback (Ft.) 20 20 Yes

Min. Rear Setback (Ft.) 15 15 Yes

Min. Side Setback (Ft.) 20 20 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9504, Version: 1

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard PD-391 Proposed Meets

Max. Density (Units Per Acre)12 12 Yes

Min. Living Area 1 Bedroom (Sq. Ft.)630 637 Yes

Min. Living Area 2 Bedrooms (Sq. Ft.)940 960 Yes

Min. Living Area 3 Bedrooms (Sq. Ft.)1,195 1,236 Yes

Max. Single-Bed Units (%)60 31 Yes

Min. Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 824,135 Yes

Min. Width (Ft.) 100 1,411.33 Yes

Min. Depth (Ft.) 120 597.08 Yes

Min. Front Setback (Ft.) 20 20 Yes

Min. Rear Setback (Ft.) 15 15 Yes

Min. Side Setback (Ft.) 20 20 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Parking

The table below evaluates the parking requirements. The proposal meets the required total parking spaces,
covered parking spaces, and garage parking spaces.

Table 3: Parking Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

1.25 Parking Spaces/One-Bedroom85 - -

2 Parking Spaces/Two-Bedroom300 - -

Total Parking Spaces 385 450 Yes

Garage Spaces 116 116 Yes

Carport Spaces 77 186 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in PD-391 and Appendix W of the UDC. The
table below summarizes these requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 123,620 777,267 Yes

Trees 233 233 Yes

Shrubs 1,065 1,246 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

The applicant will construct a masonry wall along Great Southwest Pkwy and Forum Dr. The proposed
screening wall is consistent with Forum Public Improvement District’s screening wall specifications.

Exterior Building Materials

The exterior building materials include vertical fiber cement siding, horizontal fiber cement siding, fiber
cement shake siding, stone veneer, stucco, and brick. Facades that face and are visible from Great Southwest
Pkwy or Forum Dr will be clad in 100% brick or stone.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9504, Version: 1

VARIANCES:

The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



S Forum Dr

Ca
ny

on
 R

d

S G
re

at
 So

ut
hw

es
t P

kw
y

Ti
vo

li D
r

Augusta Ln

Ri
alt

o W
ay

Stoneway Dr

For est Trai l Dr

Seven Hills Dr

Stresa Ln

Ta
m

ar
ac

k D
r

Colosseum Way

Atrium Dr

Ki
m

be
rly

 Ln

Cladius Dr

Carson Trl

Br
yc

e C
an

yo
n  

Lost Mesa  

Hopkins Dr

Frontier Dr

Village GreenDr

Wayne Way

Spartacus Dr

Ranchview Dr

Rio Grande Dr
Olympia Dr

NovusCt

Arroyo Dr

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number S191104
Avilla Traditions ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 7 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 8 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 9 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 10 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 11 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 12 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 13 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 14 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 15 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 16 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 17 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 18 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 19 of 20



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 20 of 20



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 7 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 8 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 9 of 10



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 10 of 10



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9507 Name: SU191101/S191101 - Internet Auto Sales & Private
Vehicle Maintenance, 3118 E. Main Street

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: SU191101/S191101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Internet Auto Sales & Private Vehicle
Maintenance, 3118 E. Main Street (City Council District 5). A Specific Use Permit to allow for Used
Auto Dealer and Major Auto Repair uses on one lot on 0.36 acres. The subject property is zoned
Commercial (C) District and is located within Central Business District Four (CBD-4).  The property is
generally located northeast of E. Main Street and NE 32nd Street.  The existing lots are platted as
Burbank Gardens, Unit 2, Lot 446R. The owner is Klarash Ghorbani.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Site Plan

Exhibit C - Operational Plan

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU191101/S191101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Internet Auto Sales & Private Vehicle Maintenance,
3118 E. Main Street (City Council District 5). A Specific Use Permit to allow for Used Auto Dealer and
Major Auto Repair uses on one lot on 0.36 acres. The subject property is zoned Commercial (C) District and
is located within Central Business District Four (CBD-4).  The property is generally located northeast of E.
Main Street and NE 32nd Street.  The existing lots are platted as Burbank Gardens, Unit 2, Lot 446R. The
owner is Klarash Ghorbani.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Presenter

Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

SU191101/S191101 -Specific Use Permit/Site Plan -Kia Auto Sales (City Council District 5). A request to
consider a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan to allow for Internet Auto Sales and Private Vehicle Maintenance
uses on one lot on 0.36 acres. The subject property is zoned Commercial (C) District and is located within
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9507, Version: 1

uses on one lot on 0.36 acres. The subject property is zoned Commercial (C) District and is located within
Central Business District Four (CBD-4). The property is generally located northeast of E. Main Street and NE
31st Street, specifically 3118 E. Main Street. The property is platted as Burbank Gardens, Unit 2, Lot 446R.

PURPOSE OF THE REQUEST:

Consider a request for approval of a Specific Use Permit for an Internet Auto Sales and Private Vehicle
Maintenance use on a commercial site. The .36 acre property is zoned Commercial (C) District and is located
within the Central Business District (CDB) Section 4. Generally located at the northeast corner of E. Main
Street and NE 32nd Street, specifically addressed at 3118 E. Main Street the 15,580 square foot building was
previously used as a wood shop. The applicant proposes to repurpose the building and site to an internet
automotive sales and private vehicle maintenance facility.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use

North Commercial (C) District Vacant

East Commercial (C) District Long’s Motorcycle Shop

West Commercial (C) District Omega Auto Sales

South Light Industrial (LI) District Industrial Outdoor Storage Use

Primary access to the site shall be from existing commercial drive along E. Main Street. An existing secondary
private concrete drive is located on the eastern portion of the property. The secondary drive shall serve as
access to the rear of property for inventory storage.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant is seeking a Specific Use Permit to operate an Internet Auto Sales and Private Vehicle
Maintenance business at 3118 E. Main Street. Internet Auto Sales requires approval of a Specific Use Permit in
Commercial zoning districts per Article 4, “Permissible Uses” of the Unified Development Code, Article 4,
Section 15, ‘Use Charts’. The request for Internet Auto Sales uses shall be limited to the interior building and
allowing for auto storage inventory on the eastern and rear portion of the site, with no vehicles for sale visible
from the public view.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The existing single story, 7,000 square foot building was previously used for a wood shop and fabrication
business. The exterior construction consist of primarily stucco materials with metal portions on the front and
side. Adequate customer parking is being provided up front and to the east of the building (12 spaces), with
employee and customer completed vehicle repair spaces (4 spaces) located towards the rear of the facility. The
remodel of the building shall provide for one overhead roll-up doors located on the front of the facility and one
on the rear. The remaining elements and functions of the facility shall provide for interior showroom, customer
waiting areas, offices and mechanic workspace towards the rear of the building. The site has limited
opportunities for landscaping features; however, the existing 312 sq. ft. landscape islands shall remain. In
addition, the applicant has agreed to seek areas appropriate for landscape planters.

General Operations:
According to the Operational Plan and discussion with the applicant, the single tenant Internet Auto Sales and

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9507, Version: 1

According to the Operational Plan and discussion with the applicant, the single tenant Internet Auto Sales and
Private Vehicle Maintenance facility will be open Monday through Saturday from 11:00 AM to 6:00 PM.
Internet Auto Sale use restricts outdoor auto inventory display allowing for virtual storefront only. The
applicant proposes to maintain interior auto inventory with an interior private vehicle maintenance component
of the operation. In accordance with the applicant’s operational plan, the maintenance shall be make-ready and
other minor auto repair including tune-ups and fluid changes.

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:
This site shall conform to the Auto-Related Business (ARB) Standards.  In conjunction with the ARB standards,
the business is required to register and be subject to annual inspections or as needed. Outside repair and/or
storage of parts and materials is strictly prohibited. Violations are subject to citation. Parking of vehicles shall
be on designated areas.

REQUESTED APPEALS BY APPLICANT:
No appeals are being requested by the applicant.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Specific Use Permit for Internet Sales and Private Maintenance subject to:

· That the owner make improvements to the building facade within the next 12 months.

· Limit on-site mechanic work to the inside of the building, and that such work be limited to vehicles
registered to the operator.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Ne
 31

st 
St

E Main St

Trible Dr

Ne
 32

nd
 St

E Main StE Main St
Ne

 32
nd

 St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: SU191101/S191101

Kia Auto Sales 3118 E. Main Street
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map



X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXX























 



DDS GROUP



EXHIBIT B



Exhibit C - Operational Plan



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9508 Name: SU191102/S191103 - Chokas Transportation
Services, 2960 Roy Orr Blvd

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:10/24/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/4/2019

Title: SU191102/S191103 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Chokas Transportation Services, 2960 Roy Orr
Blvd (City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit for Heavy Truck Repair consisting of a 9,050 SF
single-story building.  All of Lot 3 and a portion of Lot 2, Block 1, Clean Machine Addition, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, 2.22 acres zoned LI, Light Industrial district and located within
the SH 161 Overlay. The agent is Walter Nelson, Walter Nelson and Associates, the owner/applicant
is Angelo Chokas.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description

Exhibit B - Operational Plan

Exhibit C - Site Plan

Exhibit D - Building Elevations

Exhibit E - Landscape Plan

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU191102/S191103 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Chokas Transportation Services, 2960 Roy Orr Blvd
(City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit for Heavy Truck Repair consisting of a 9,050 SF single-story
building.  All of Lot 3 and a portion of Lot 2, Block 1, Clean Machine Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, 2.22 acres zoned LI, Light Industrial district and located within the SH 161 Overlay. The agent
is Walter Nelson, Walter Nelson and Associates, the owner/applicant is Angelo Chokas.
City Council Action: November 19, 2019

Presenter

David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Denial

Analysis

SUMMARY:
Specific Use Permit for Heavy Truck Repair consisting of a 9,050 SF single-story building. All of Lot 3 and a
portion of Lot 2, Block 1, Clean Machine Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, 2.22 acres

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9508, Version: 1

zoned LI, Light Industrial district and located within the SH 161 Overlay.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:
The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and
Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Car Wash/Truck Wash

South LI; PD-39 Undeveloped

East LI; PD-326 Undeveloped (zoning permits Light Industrial with Auto-Related Uses prohibited)

West LI; MF-1 Undeveloped

SITE HISTORY:

· February 17, 1987: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Lots 1-3, Block 1,
Clean Machine Addition. The site that is the subject of this request sits on all of Lot 3 and the south 235
feet of Lot 2.

· The extension of W Oakdale Rd. to Roy Orr was completed in 2017 and provides a potential southern
access point for this site. Previously, access was limited to Roy Orr Blvd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to establish a Heavy Truck Repair use in the Light Industrial (LI) district. The use will
consist of one 9,050 square foot single-story metal building along with a fenced and gated parking area behind
the building.

The parking area will consist of concrete paving and fire circulation areas in which no vehicle parking will be
allowed. The applicant proposes to use wrought iron fencing parallel to Roy Orr Blvd. and chain link fencing
on the northern portion of the parking area. The east and south portions would be screened with a retaining wall
a minimum of 4 feet in height.

An additional parking area in front of the building is for the use of customers.

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The 2.22 acre site has direct frontage on Roy Orr Blvd. but does not have direct access to the existing median
opening. A provision has been made for a future cross access drive between the subject property and the car
wash to the north but no cross access easement was established with the plat, meaning access would have to be
negotiated with the property owner to the north.

To alleviate restricted truck turn movements onto Roy Orr, a second drive is proposed across city property to
the Oakdale Road extension, which would require a license agreement with the city. Unlike the west drive, the
south drive would provide access to southbound Roy Orr, but access from the site to SH 161 would require that
a truck proceed north along Roy Orr to Trinity Blvd., or south to Carrier Pkwy.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9508, Version: 1

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Table 1 evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets or
exceeds the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 15,000 2.2 acres Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 Approx. 200 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 Approx. 300 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 45 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 30 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to the landscaping and screening requirements found in Article 8 and Appendix F of the
UDC. Table 2 summarizes what is required and what is provided. The applicant has designed the project to take
advantage of existing trees for aesthetic and screening purposes. As part of the site design process, a tree survey
was conducted cataloguing the caliper inch size of trees existing on site. Per Section 8.7.3 and Section 4.B of
Appendix F, Unified Development Code, the applicant proposes to use existing trees as credit for 5 required
trees and 12 parking spaces.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 7,792 7,792 Yes

Trees 16 + 4 P/L Trees 20 Yes

Shrubs 155 85* No

Parking Lot Screening 36” Hedge 36” Hedge + 1 tree Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

Building and Site Design

Industrial buildings within a Corridor Overlay that are under 50,000 square feet in size are required to meet
Appendix F of the Unified Development Code (Sec. 7, Appendix X). Buildings in the overlay are required to
meet base standards for building and site design, landscaping, and sustainabiliy features along with providing a
minimum number of discretionary items.

The proposed building is oriented toward Roy Orr Blvd. with a small parking lot between the building and the
street screened by a row of hedges. Over 75% of the parking is situated behind the building, and additional
trees are shown adjacent to the parking area in front of the building that will provide additional screening and
lessen the impact of the paved area. The garage bay doors are located at the rear of the building not visible from
Roy Orr. The applicant is proposing to utilize the existing dense vegetation along Oakdale Ln. to the east to
provide further screening of the rear of the building and the rear parking area. General site layout meets the
base standards of Appendix F in that it is consistent with the prevailing built form along Roy Orr Blvd., which
consists primarily of single-story buildings with moderate setbacks from the street edge. If approved, the SUP
will be strictly limited to truck repair, including vehicles categorized as “Heavy Truck” such as box trucks and
semi-tractors. No trailers are permitted on the property, and no long-term storage of vehicles, whether operable
or inoperable, will be allowed. All trucks, whether awaiting repair or pick-up by the customer, must be parked

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9508, Version: 1

or inoperable, will be allowed. All trucks, whether awaiting repair or pick-up by the customer, must be parked
behind the fenced area.

The building design deviates significantly from Appendix F requirements. A brick wainscot 3’ high is the only
masonry shown, with the balance of the exterior consisting of painted metal R-panel. There is a 20% allowance
in Appendix F for finished metal panel, but the building as shown far exceeds this allowance. In addition, three
of the four building facades lack horizontal articulation or windows. There is one short canopy provided over
the front door.

The development addresses the sustainability requirements of Appendix F by virtue of its position along a
proposed mixed-use trail that would connect from the Regional Veloweb to Mike Lewis Park, and in its use of
drought-tolerant species for 70% of plantings (Live Oaks, Schumard Red Oaks, Crepe Myrtles, and Buford
Hollies).

VARIANCES:

· Metal (R-panel) building facade on the majority of the building.

· Windows and horizontal articulation shown only on Roy Orr-facing elevation.

· Use of existing vegetative cover on the south and east portions of the property to satisfy a portion of the
required landscape calculation.

· Excess parking spaces over minimum. Applicant is requesting this variance due to the auto-oriented
nature of the use.

ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION:

Roy Orr currently functions as an arterial connecting north Grand Prairie to Fort Worth/Centreport and DFW
Airport. Uses found along this boulevard primarily consist of large regional distribution facilities, small local
contractor operations, and franchise truck and equipment rental operations. Facilities for the servicing and
repair of vehicles, including large trucks, are not prevalent along Roy Orr; where they do exist, they typically
function as an accessory use to a larger operation such as truck rental. Of note is that the PD district to the east
(across Oakdale Ln.) prohibits auto-related uses such as repair.

The use as proposed would occupy a highly visible location at the corner of two arterial roadways near Mike
Lewis Park. Even if the building design criteria are met, staff believes that the establishment of truck repair at
this highly visible location would be detrimental to the overall area and therefore cannot recommend approval.
Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/1/2019Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



Roy Orr Blvd

Ri
ve

r R
id

ge
 B

lvd
W Oakdale Rd

Oakdale Ln

Farmers Rd

Cat Tail Ln

Cascade Dr

Big Bend Dr

Blackberry Ln

Knoll Ridge Ct

Oak Knoll Way

Clear Brook Cir

Peach Tree Bend  

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number SU191102/S191103
Chokas Heavy Truck Repair
2960 Roy Orr Blvd ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

Exhibit A - Boundary Description Page 1 of 2



BEING all of that certain tract of land situated in the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas 
and being part of the Thomas Crocker Survey, Abstract No 1704, and the Peyton Splane Survey, 
Abstract No. 1731 Dallas County, Texas and being all of Lot 3 and part of Lot 2, Block 1 of the 
CLEAN MACHINE ADDITION, an addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas 
according to the Map thereof recorded in Volume 87098, Page 6134 of the Map Records of 
Dallas County, Texas and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
BEGINNING at a 5/8” iron rod found in the West Right-of-Way line of Oakdale Road, marking 
the southeast corner of a tract of land conveyed to Maria G. Syrquin by Deed recorded in 
Volume 96028, Page 4892 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas  
THENCE with said West Right-of-Way line and the East line of said premises, South 01° 39' 39" 
East, 242.35 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with yellow cap marking the Northeast corner of a tract of 
land conveyed to Beth Raddatz Hall by deed recorded in Volume 76136, Page 120 of the Deed 
Records of Dallas County, Texas and the southeast corner of said premises; 
THENCE with the North line of said Hall Tract and the South line of said premises, North 88° 
58'58" West, 479.86 feet to a 5/8" iron rod found in the East Right-of-way line of Roy Orr 
Boulevard, marking the Northwest corner of said Hall tract, the Southwest corner of said 
premises and beginning of a curve to the right; 
THENCE with said East Right-of-Way line, the West line of said premises and said curve to the 
right having a Central Angle of 05° 55'43", a Radius of 1837.75 feet. an arc length of 190.16 feet 
and a Chord Bearing and Distance of North 28°55'50" East, 190.08 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found 
for corner; 
THENCE with said East Right-of-Way line and the West line of said premises, North 31° 30' 46" 
East. 68.30 feet to a 5/8" iron rod found marking the southwest corner of a tract of land 
conveyed to the Trust of Travis M. Boney and James C. Boney by Deed recorded in Volume 
95005, Page 5820 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas and the Northwest corner of 
said premises; 
THENCE with the south line of said Boney Tract, the South line of said Syrquin Tract and the 
North line of said premises, North 88° 28'50" East passing a 5/8" iron rod found at 209.81 feet 
and continuing for a total distance of 345.23 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
2.22 acres of land, more or less. 
 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B - Operational Plan



”

Exhibit C - Site Plan



Exhibit D - Building Elevations



Exhibit E - Landscape Plan


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9497
	19-9497 - PZ Draft Minutes 10-07-19.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9499
	19-9499 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9499 - Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf
	19-9499 - Exhibit i - PD-359
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9500
	19-9500 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9500 - Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9501
	19-9501 - Exhibit A - Location Map
	19-9501 - Exhibit B - Final Plat
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9502
	19-9502 - Exhibit A - Location Map
	19-9502 - Exhibit B RP191102
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9189
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9503
	19-9503 - Exhibit A - Location Map
	19-9503 - Exhibit B - Site Plan
	19-9503 - Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
	19-9503 - Exhibit C - Elevations
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9505
	19-9505 - Exhibit A - Location Map
	T:\OneDrive\C3D WORK FOLDER\201821 SIVAGIRI ASHRAM DESIGN\SHEETS\C-2.0 SITE PLAN - SIVAGIRI ASHRAM Layout1 (1)
	ELEVATIONS - COLOR.pdf
	L1.01 Landscape Plan
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9504
	19-9504 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9504 - Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf
	19-9504 - Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf
	19-9504 - Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9507
	19-9507 - Exhibit A - Location Map
	19-9507 - Exhibit B - Site Plan
	19-9507 - Exhibit C - Operational Plan
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9508
	19-9508 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	19-9508 - Exhibit B - Operational Plan
	19-9508 - Exhibit C - Site Plan
	19-9508 - Exhibit D - Building Elevations
	19-9508 - Exhibit E - Landscape Plan




